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DIRECTORS' REPORT

The Directors hereby submit their report together with the audited flnancial statements of the
Group and Company for the financial year ended 31 Decamber 2013,

FRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is that of praviding long haul air transpertation sarvices. The
principal agtivities of the subsidiaries are described in Note 15 to the flnancial statements. Thers
were no significant changes in the nature of the activitios of the Company and the subsidiaries
during the financial yaar.

FINANGIAL RESULTS
Sroup Company
RK'ODG RM'000
Met loss for the financial year (AB.267) {88,073
DIVIDENDS

Mo dividend has been paid or declared by the Company since the end of the previous financial
year.

The Directors do not recommend the payment of any dividend for the financial year ended 31
LPecember 2013,
RESERVES AND PROVISIONS

All material transfers {0 or from reserves and provisions during the financial yvear are shown in the
financial statements, '
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CIRECTORS' REPORT (CONTINUED)

ISEUANCE OF EHARES

On 10 May 2013, all the outstanding 42,866,687 Redeamable Convertibla Preference Sharas
("RCPE") of RM1 each in the Company was canverted on a one-to-one basis, into 42 888 847 naw
ordinary shares of RM1 each in the Company, without consideration. On 13 May 2013, the
Company cancelled ts autharlssd share capital for RCPS of RM1 each, amounting to
FMB0,000.000.

Durlng Lthe finangial year, the Company implameantad the following transactionz as part of an initial
puklic offering {°1PC") exarcize:

(i Qn 13 May 2013, the Company subdivided all of s exlsting 286,668,668 ordinary shares
af RM1 aach into 1,777,777,787 ordinary shares of RMO.15 sach, by way of avery thrae
{3) ardinary shares of RM1 sach Inta twenty (20} ordinary shares of RM0O.15 each In the
Company. On that same date, the Company increased its awthorised share capltal from
RMZ70,000.000 to RMS00,000,000, comprising 3,333,333,333 shares of RMO.16 each by
the creation of 1,533,333,333 ordinary shares of RM(.15 sach;

il On 10 June 2013, the Company issued a Prospectus in conjunctian with an IPCH of up to
790,123,500 ardinary shares of RMUO.15 each in the Company, campriglng an offer for sale
al up to 187,530,900 existing ordinary shares of RMO.18 each and a public issue of
592,692 600 new ordinary sharas of RMO.15 gach to retall and Institutional investors at a
refall price of RM1.25 par sharg;

(it In conjunction with the IPO, the Company Implemented an Employess' Share Oplion
Scheme {"ES03") to recognise the cantrlbutlen of the Eligible Directors and Eliglble
Employees of up to 5,550,600 ESOS new urdlnary shares of RMO15 each, to be lssued
and awarded upen the terms and condlllong of the By-Laws of the ESOS,

The entire enlarged issued and pald up ordinary sharo capital of RM355,565,558 comprising
2,370,370,387 ordinary shares of RM0.15 each ware listed and guoted on the Official Lizl of the
Main Market of Bursa Malaysla Securitios Borhad an 10 July 2013,

The issted and paid-up share capltal of the Company currently stands al RM355,565 558
comptlsing 2.370,570,387 ordinary shares of BMJ.15 each, The new ordinary sharas issued
during the fnanclal year ranked pari passu in all respects with the exisling ardinary shares of the
Crompany.

EMFLOYERS' SHARE OPTION SCHEKE

In conjunction with the PO, the Company had Implemantad an Employees' Share Option Beherma
{"ES0E") which entails the issuance of up ta ten parcant (10%) of the issued and pald-up shars
capital of the Company at any ane dme pursuant to the exarcise of options to be granted under tha
BSOS, to full-time ellgible employess and sligible Directors of the Group ("ES0S Optlens'). The
tenure of the ES2S shall be five (5) years wilh an aptian to extend for a further (5) years, subject
to a maximum duratlan of ten (10) yesrs, Tho ESOS is governed by the By-Laws which wera
approved by the sharehalders on 12 QOctober 2012,

On 1 July 2013, the Company granted § 550 000 E30S Options to iz ellgible employeas at the
exarcise price ol RiM1.25 per apticn ("Initial Grant™). The vesting of the ES0OS Options under the
Inltial Grant shall be subjsct to the terms and conditions of the By-Laws.

Dedalls of the ESOE aro sat cut in Note 24 to the financial stalernents.

2



Company Mo.
73481 | K

AIRAS|A X BERHAD
(Incomaorated in Malaysia)

DIRECTORS' REPORT {COMTINUED)

OIRECTORS
The Directors who have held office during the perlod since the date of tha |ast report are as follows:

Tan 8d Rafidah Aziz

Tan 5r Or. Anthony Francis Femandes
Dralek Kamarudin bin Meranun

Mrate’ Seri Kalimullah bin Masheeml Flassan
Lim Kian Onn

Dato' Fam Les Es

Kivoshi Fushitani

Tan Bri Asmat Bin Kamaludin {Appolntod on 13 May 2013)

Crale' Yuslk Bln Mohamed Yusoff {Appecinted on 13 May 2013)

Asher Noor {Appointed as director and coasad as altarnate
director on 30 Bocembar 2013)

Klyolaks Taraka

[aftomato Director to Kivoshi Fushitani)

Shan-E-Abbas Ashary {Resigned on 30 Docembar 2013}

MRECTORS BEMEFITS

Luring and at the and of tha financial year, no arrangements subsistod to which the Sompany 1s & party,
being arrangementa with the abject or objects of anabling Directors of the Group and Company to
acqulre benefits by means aof the acguisition of sharas in, or dekentures of, he Company o any other
body corporata,

Slnee the end of the previous financial year, no Director has received or become antitled fo receive a
bonefit {other than Directers’ remuneration as disclosed In Nole B Lo the financial statements) by reason
of a contract made by the Company or a related ecorporation with the Directer or with a firm of which he
is a membear, or wilh a sompany in which ho has a substantial financial interest. except as disclosed n
Mot 2 to tho financial stataments,

DIRECTORS' INTERESTS I[N SHARES

According Lo e reglaler of Directors’ sharchaldings, particutars of intarests of Sireclors who hold office
ak the ond of the financial year in shares in the Company and |ls related corporations ars as follows:

Mumber of ordinary

sharas of BM1.00 each Mumber of ordinary sharos of [IM0.15 each
Subdividod
1.1.2013 on 14.52013  Acquired Disposed  31.12.2013
The Cormipsany
Direct interests
Datuk Kamarudin bin karanun 9,953 454 /3,356,360 100,000 - 66,456,380
Tan 3t Or, Anthony Francls
Farnandes 8203 5AG 35,223,807 - - 35 233807
Data' Seri Kalimullah hin
Mashesrul Hassan 2,410,687 16,070,447 100,000 - 181F0, 447
L Kian Cnn 2,410,587 16,070,447 100,000 - 18170, 447
Tan Srl Rafidah Aziz - - 100,000 - 100,000
Cato' Fam lLes Ee - - 00,000 (100,000) -
Tan 3ri Asmat Bin Kamaludin n - 100,000 - 100,000
Dato’ Yusll Bin Mokarmed Yosoff - - 100,000 " 100,000
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DIRECTORE' REPORT {CONTINUELY

DIRECTORS INTERESTS [N SHARES {CONTINUED)

Arcording o the rogistor of Directors’ shareholdings. particulars of inlerests of Dlrectors wha hald olflos
at the end of the financial year in shares in the Company and its melated corporations are as follows:
(continued}

Mumber of nrdinary sharos of Mumber of ardinary shares of
S RM1 aach Ri0.15 each
At Converted At Bub-divided Acopiracd! bty

112013 from ROPS 108520153 onl3.5.2013  (Disposedt J1L12.2013

The Campary

Indiract interests
Datuk Kamarudin

hin Moranun ** 145,545,719 42 665,667 108,212 345 1,254, 749,230 (111,733,223 1,143,018,014
Tan Sri Or Anthohy

Francis Fernandes™ 145545718 42 6686 667 186,212 386 1,254,748,230 (111,733,223)1,143,016,018
Lim Kian Qnn*** - - - - B0 GO0 GG0,000
Tan Sri Refidah Aziz" - - . - 100,000 100,000

Mumber of redeemable corwveriblo preference shares
("RECPS" of RM1 aach

At At
1.1.2013 Converted 31.12.2013
The Company
Indirect Imersata
Dgtuk Kamanadin bin Meranun® 42 BER,G57 (42, GEE,667) -
Tan 3ri Dr Anthony Francis
Femandes* 42 BGR BT [42, 866,647 -

Deemad interasted by virtue of thelr sharehalding infterests in Airdsia Berhad pursuant o Section
g4 ol lhe Companias Acl, 1965,

Deemed interosted by virug of their sharehoiding interests In Aero Venlures Sdn Bhd and Airsla
Barhad pursuant to Section 6& of the Companies Act, 1965,

** Pursuant to Section 134{12)(2) of tho Companias Act, 1965, the interests of apouse and childran of
Lim Kian Onn io tho shares of tha Company shall also be treated as the Interest of Lim Kian O,
Pursuant to Section 134(12){c) of lhe Companles Act, 1065, the interast of spouse of Tan Sii

Rafldake Axle In the shares of the Company shall also be treated as the Inleresl of Tan Sri Rafidah
Azlz

L i

#
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DIRECTORS' REPCRT {CONTINUED)

DIRECTORS' INTERESTS IN SHARES {CONTINUEL)

(rher than as disclosed above, according to the register of Directors' shareholdings, none of the
other Directars wha held office at the end of the financial year had any interests in shares and
optichg over shares in the Company and its related corperations during the financizl year.

STATUTORY INFORMATION ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Before the financial statements were made out, the Directors tock reasonable steps:

{a]

to ascertain that proper action had keen faken in relation to the writing off of bad debts and
the making of allowance for doubtful debte and satizfied themsalves that all known bad
debts nad heen written off and that adequats allowance had besh mada for doubtiul dabts:
and

to ensure that any current assets, other than debts, which were unlikely to reallse in the
ordinary course of business their values as shown in the accounting records of the Group
and Campany had beon written down o an amount which they might be expectad sa to
realige,

At the date of this repaort, the Directors are not aware of any gircumstances:

(a}

(b}

{c}

which would render the amounts written off for bad debts or the amount of the allowance
for doubtfui debts in the financial statements of the Group and Company Inadeguate to
any substantial extent; or

which would render the values aftributed te current assols in the financial statements aof
the Group and Company misleading; or

which have arlsen which rander adherence to the existing method of valuation of assets or
llabilltlas of the Group and Company mlsleading ar inappropriate. '

Mo contingent or other liability has become enforceahle or ig likely to bacome enforceabls wihin
the period of twelve months after the end of the financial year which, In the opinion of the
Dirsctors, will or may affect the ability of the Group or Company 1o meet thalr obligations as and
whian thay fall dus,

]
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DIRECTORS' REPORT (CONTIMUED)

STATUTORY INFORMATION ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
At the date of this report, there does not exist:

{a) any charge on tha assets of the Group and Company which has arisen since the end of the
financial year which secures the liabflity of any other parsan; or

{ka} any contingent liability of the Group and Company which has atisen since the end of the
: financial year.

At the date of this repo, the Directors are not aware of any circumstances not otharwise dealt with in
this report o the financial statements which would render any ameount stated in the financial
statements misleading.

In the opinicen of the Directors:

(a) except as disclosed in the financial statements, the results of the Group's and Company's
operationsz during the financial year wera not substantially affected by any itern, transaction ar
event of a matstial and unusual nature; and

{b) there has not arisen in the Intarval between the end of the financial year and the date of this

' report any itern, iransaction or event of a material and unusual nature likely to affect

substantially the results of the cperatlons of the Group and Company for the financial ysar in
which thiz report is made, ather than as disclosed in Mote 33 to the financial statements.

AUDITORS

The auditors, PricewatsrhauseCoopers, have exprassed theit willingness ta continue in office.

Signad on behall of the Board of Directors in accordancs with & resolution dated 2 B APR 014

i

FAH AZIZ - DATO'YUSL BIN MOHAMED YUSOFF
IHECT DIRECTCR
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INCOME STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2013

e e Group Company
Note 2018 2012 2013 2012
Rr'000 RM'OOD RMGO0 RM'0DD
Revanle 4 2,308,350 1,867,427 2,308,003 1,367,063
Ciperating axpansss
- Staff costs 5 {233,601} {180,498) {230,700) {177,070}
- Depreciation of property,
plant and equipment (120,558) {107.097) {120,558} {107 097}
- Aircraft fugl expenses {1,101,218) (8252841 (1,101,218} {925,204)
- Maintenance, overhaul, user
chargss and other related
e¥penses (451,369)  (381,545)  (451,369) (379,842
- Alrcraft aperating lease
EXpIENEES {186,653 {152,408} (186,663) {152,408
- (ther operating expanses g {203,461} {179,558) {208,585) {182,872)
Other income 7 20,401 5,081 20,41 B,121
Cther gain 8 8,541 - 5,541 "
Share of results of an assoclate 16 (502} - -
Operating profit 36,522 48,968 35,843 48,601
Finance income 8 3,811 1,876 3.608 1,871
Finance costs g (7E422) {55,438} (75,422 (96.438)
Foreign exchange (lesses)ipains
on Borrowings 2] {178,171} 43,589 {176,171} 43,590
(Loss)/profit hefore taxation (12,0804 28,005 {212,142} 37,6833
Taxation
- Current taxation 10 (2a7) 800 (77 863
- Dalerred taxation 10 124,780 (5,055} 124,730 {4,95%;
123,793 {4,155) 124,053 (4,098)
Met {|oashprodit for the financial year {88,267} 33,850 (88,079} 33537
Basic {losslearnings per share
attributable to ordinary equity
holders of the Company (sen) 3 {6.7) 12.7
Diluted {loas)fearnings per sharg
atiributable to crdinary eouty
halders of the Company [sen) 3 (6.7) 127
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STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2013

Met {losel/profit for the
financial year

Cther comprehensive
ineomef(ings), nat of tax
- Cash flow hedges
- Fereign currency translation
diffetences

Tatal comprehenstye {loss)fincoma
for the financial year

Total comprehensive (loss)/incomea
attributable to:
- Equity holders of the Gompary
- Mon-controlling interests

Shoup Company,
2013 2012 2013 2012
RYOG0 RKOO0 RMODD HK'000
(88,2587} 33,850 (88.079} 33,537
20,527 20,527
(12) (1} -
(B7,752) 33,349 (B7,552) 33,537
{67,752} 33,849
(67, 752) 33,848
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BALANCE SHEETS AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2013

Mote

NON-CURRENT ASSETS

Froperty, plant and equipment
Defarrad lax asssts

Deposits on aircraft purchases
Other deposits

Investment in an assoclate
Cerivative financial instruments

CURRENT ASSETS

Derivative financial instrumants
Inventories

Raecaivables and prepayments
Amounts dua from related parties
Amount due from an associaie
Deposits, cash and bank balances
Tax recoverable

l.LESS: CURRENT LIABILITIES

Trade and other payables
Amounts dueg ta related parties
Amounts due 1o subsidiaries
Sales in advance

Borrowings

MET CURRENT LIABILITIES

NON-CURRENT LIABILITY

Borrowings

CAPITAL AND RESERVES

Share capital

Share premium

Hedge resetve

Capital reserve

Retained eamings

Currency translation reserve

SHAREHOLDERS EQUITY

1
12
13
14
16
i7

17
18
19
20
20
21

22
20
20

23

23

24

25

Group Carnpany
eg13 22 2013 2012
B"000 RICOD Rr000 R Oo0
2,275,213 1,325,822 2270213 1,325,822
358,630 234,840 358,630 234,840
638,283 418,385 £538,283 418,385
198,201 126 058 196,201 126,058
19,916 - 20,018 -
50,3858 0,388 -
3,549,231 2,105,115 3,040 7733 2,105,115
5,541 - 5,54 -
293 808 0933 806
166,360 130,756 185,418 180,414
18,387 15,7358 16,325 15,704
1,353 - 1,353 -
262,876 173,851 282,777 172,575
023 1,711 274 1,818
453,128 325.",992 452, BE2 321,812
348,778 254,004 345,080 252 307
1,916 5,829 1.916 5,920
- - 1,887 1,851
42,258 185,184 421,258 185,168
445 5B 521 045 445,880 ha21,045h
1,215,832 975,166 1,217,021 976,120
(FE2,703) {653,174} {764,433) (B4, 608)
1,550,373 871,211 1,550,373 871211
1,238,155 580,730 1,234,821 578,208
355 566 266,667 356, 5b6 268,687
840 584 215,832 848,508 215,842
20,527 - 20,527 -
hZd - 022 -
10,030 83,287 8,718 oG 757
(78) (65) - -
1,236,155 580,730 1,234,921 h7D.208
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AIRASIA X BERHAD

{incorporated in Malaysia)

STATEMENTS CF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2013

Group Company
2014 2012 2013 2012
RAO00 RI000 RLFOO0 RIM'CO0

CASH FLOWS FROM
QOPERATING ACTIVITIES

{Lozs)profit before taxation . (212,060} az.005 {212,142 37,633

Adjustments:
Fropearty, plant and eguipmant

- Depreciation 120,658 107,087 120,558 107 067
- Galn on disposal - (1,148) - {1,148
= Write off ' - 23 - -
Impairment of recetvables 552 1,545 RE2 1,545
[nterest expanse 76,422 06,438 78,422 06,438
Interast lncome {3,032} {1,084} {3.029) {1,068
Interest income on deposits
for leased aircraft (A7) {812} (579 {B124
Fair value gain on derivative '
financial instruments {4,473 - {4,473 -
Fair valus of shareholders’
benefits scheme _ 8,536 - 8,536 -
Shars option expense h22 - 622 -
Share of results of an assoclate a02 - - -
Uniealised foreign exchango
losses(gains} 61,850 {38,812} 51,812 (38,812
48,788 161,272 48,279 180,882
Changes in worklng capital:
inventories {187 85 {187} 85
Receivahles, prepayments and
wther deposfis (88 628) (15,520 (80,861} (15,738)
Related partlas (5,343) 1,532 (5,719} {1,602
Tradeo and other payablos 79,833 83,579 81,571 98,121
Sales in advance 226,070 {221,609) 225,070 {221,809
Cash gererated from opearations 252 551 18,049 260,053 17,849
Interest paid (73,633 {RE,170) {73,633} {56,170)
Intarast recaivad 3,142 a57 3,119 a5z
Tex recovergd 1,718 - 1,718 .
Tax paid {1,287} (1,032 {1,001} (B0}

Mat cash generated fromi{used in}
operating activities 189,480 {37 196} 190,254 {38.059)
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STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2013 (CONTINUED)

Mote

CASH FLOWS FROM
INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Froperty, plant and eguipmeant
- Additinns

- Proceeds from disposal
nvestmant In assoclala
Deposits on aircraft purchase

Mat zash usad in investing activitios

CASH FLOWS FROM
FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Procesds from allotment of shares
Procesds from borrowings
Rapayments of borrowings
Daposits pledged as securties

MNet cazh generated from
financing activitizs

MET INCREASE FOR THE
FINANCIAL YEAR

CURBENCY TRANSLATION
CIFFEREMCES

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
AT BEGINNING OF THE
FINANCIAL YEAR

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
AT END OF THE FINANCIAL
YEAR 21

Group Company

2013 2012 2013 2012
RAFDO0 RIIO00 RAO00 RMO00
{1,064,949) (37,289) (1,088,948) {37.2859)
- 25,506 - 26,006

(20,018) - {20,018) .
{218,643) (49,700) (218,643) {49,700
{1,308,510) (59,993) (1,308,510 {59,903)
722,656 . 722,655 .
1,087,310 355,313 1,087,310 355,313
{612,941} (201,062} {612,841 (201,062
{50,887} - {50,887) -
1,156,137 154,251 1,156,157 154,251
37,116 57,062 37,881 55,198
1,002 2,809 1,034 2,909
173,951 113,880 172,975 113,867
212,089 173,851 211,880 172,975
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 31 DECEMBER 2013

GENERAL INFORBATION

The principal activity of the Company is that of providing long haul air transportation services. The
principal activities of the subsidiary companies are described In Note 15 1o the financial
statermnents.

There were no significant changes in the nature of these activities during the financlal year.

The address of the reglstersd office of the Company is as follows:

B-13-15, Leval 13

Manars Prlma Tower B

Jalan PJLI/39, Dataran Prima
4731 Petaling Jaya

Selangor Darul Ehsan

The address of the principal place of business of the Group and Company is as follows:

Lot PT16E, Jalan KLLA 57
Southermn Support Zone

kLiA

£4000 Sepang
Selangor Darul ERzan

The financlal statements have been approved for issus in accordance with a resolution of the
Board of Directars an 28 April 2014,

SUMMARY OF SIGMIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

tnless olherwise stated, the foliowing accounting pollsles have been applied consistently in
dealing with items that are consldered material in retation to the financial statements;

{a)

Basls of preparation

Ths flnancial statements of the Group and Company have been preparad In accordanca
with the Malaysian Financial Reperting Standards (“MFRS™, Internatlonal Financlal
Reparting Standards and the requirements of the Companies Act, 1965 in Malaysia.

The financial statermants have been prepared under the historical cost convention except
as discloged in this summary of significant accounting policles.

The preparation of financial statemants in conformity with MFRS requires the use of certaln
critical accounting estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets
and liabilitles and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial
statements, and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reported
flnanclal year. It alse reguires Dirsclors to exergise their judgmant in the process of
applying the Group’s and Company's accounting paolicies.  Although these estimates and
judgment are based on the Directors’ best knowdedge of current events and actions, actual
results may diffar. The areas Involving a higher degree of judgment or complexity, or areas
where assumptions and estimates are signlilcant to the financial statemants are disclosad
in Mote 3 to the financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — 31 DECEMBER 2013 (CONTINUED)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {CONTINUEDR)

(a)

- Basis of praparation (continued)

Whilst the Group's and Company's current liabilities exeeedsd their current assets by
BM7B2, 703,000 and RM7E4,439,000 respactively as at 31 December 201 3, tha Diractors
are of the view that no material uncertainty relating to these conditions exists that may cast
significant doubt on the Group's or Company’s ahility to continue a3 a geing soncem. The
Diractors belisve that the Group and Company are able fo realiss their assets and
dischargs their iabilitles in the hormal course of business and that the financial position will
be improved through future operating profits and cash flows. In January 2014, the Group
and Compatty had also secured a term loan amounting to USD72.5 milllon {approximatsly
MM237.7 million) to finance the acquisition of an Alrbes AS30-300 aircraft which was
delivered on @ Janeary 2014 and ara currently In negotistlons with lenders for credit
facilittes to finance their commitmants for the acqulsition of aireraft in 2014, The Directors
are of the view that the Group and Company are able to secure thesa cradit facllities to
finance the delivery of the relevant aircraft aceording to the aircraft delivary schadule given
that the Group and Company are currently finalising the terms and condltions of thase
credit facilitiss.

Standards, amendments to published standards and interpretations that are eftegiive

The new accounting standards, amendments and Improvements to published standards
and interpratations that are effective for the Group and Company's financial year beginning
ph or after 1 January 2013 are as follows:

. MFRS 10 'Consolidated Financial Statements'

= MFBS 12 'Disclosures of Interests in Other Entitias'

. MFRS 13 'Fair Valus Measurement'

. The revised MFRS 127 ‘Separate Financial Statements’

. Tha rovised MFRS 128 ‘Investments in Associates and Joint Ventureg’

v Amendments to MFRS 101 'Presentation of fems of Other Comprehensive
Income’

v Amendment to MFRS 119 'Employes benefits’

v Amendment to MFRS 7 ‘Financial Instruments: Disclosures'

. Amendments to MFRS 10, 11 & 12 'Consclidated Financial Statements, Joint
Arrangements and Disclosure of Interests in Othar Entitiss: Transition Guidance’

' Annual impravements 2009 - 2011 Cycle
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — 31 DECEMBER 2013 (CONTINUED)
SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {CONTINUED)

(5} Standards, amendments 1o published standards and interpretations to_existing standards
that are applicable to the Group but not yet effective

The Group will apply the new standards, amendments to standards and interpretations in
the following period:

() Effective for financial ysar baginning on or after 1 January 2014

. Amandment to MFRS 132 'Financial Instruments: Presaniation’ (effective
from 1 January 2014) does nof change the current offsetting modal n
MFRS 132, It clarifies the meaning of 'currently has a legally enforceable
right of set-off' that the right of set-off must be avaflable today (not
contingent on a fulurs event) and lagally enforcsable for all countarparties
in the normal course of business. It clarifles that some gross settlemeant
mechanisma with featuras that are offectively eguivalent to net settlement
will satiafy the MFRS 132 offsatting critetia.

. Amendments to MFRS 10, MFRS 12 and MFRS 127 (effective from 1
January 2014} introducs an exception to consolidation for investment
gntities. Investment entities are entities whoas business purpose is to
invest funds solely for retums from capital appreciation, investment
income or both and evaluate the performance of its invastments on falr
valug bagis. The amendments require investment entitles to measure
partlsular subsldlaries at fair value instead of consolidating them,

Iy Effective date yet to be determined by Malaysian Accounting Standards Board

. MFRS 9 'Financial Instruments — Classification and Measurement of
Financial Assets and Financial Liabllities’ replaces the pars of MFRS 139
that relate to the classification and measurement of financial instruments.
MFRS 8 requires financlal assets to be classified into two measuremant
categories. those measured as at fair value and those measured at
amortised cost. The determination is made at Inilial recognition. The
classification depends on the entity's business model for managing s
flnancial instruments and the contractual cash flow characterislics of the
instrumnent.. For financial liabliitles, the standard retains most of the MFRS
139 requiremeants. The malh change is that, in cases whara the fair value
option 18 taken for financial liabillties, the part of a fair value change dus to
an entlity's own credit risk is racorded in olher comprehensive income
rather than the income statament, unless this creates an accounting
mismatch. The Group has yat to assess MFRS &'z full impact. The Group
will also considser the Impact of the remaining phases of MFRS 9 whaen
completad by the Board. '
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NOTES TO THE FINANGIAL STATEMENTS - 31 DECEMBER 2013 (CONTINUED)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUELS
(dl} Pasis of consolidation
(i Subsldlarias

Subsidiaries are all entities {including structured entlties) over which the Group
has control. The Group controls an entity whan the Group is exposed to, or has
rights to, variable retums fram its involvement with the entity and has the ability to
affect those retums through fts powar over the entity. Subsidiaries ara fully
conselidated from the date on which controt is transferrad to the Group, They are
deconsolldated from the date that control ceases.

The Group applies the acquisiton method to account for business combinations.
The consideration transferred for the acquisition of & subsldiary is the fair valyes of
the assets transferred, the liabilities incurred 1o the former owners of the acquires
and the equity interests Issued by the Group. The consideration transferred
includes the falr valle of any asset or liabllity resulting from a contingent
consideration arrangement. |dsntifiable assets acquired and llabiliies and
contingent liabilltles assumed in a business combination ars measured initially at
their fair values at the acquisition date. The Group recognises any non-centrolling
interast in the acquiree on an acqulsitlsn-by-acquisition basis, slther at fair value
or at the non-contralling interest's proportlonate share of the recognised amounts
of acoulree's identifiable net assets.

Acquisitioh-related costs are oxpensed as incurred.

If the buslness combination is achleved in stages, the acguisition date fair value of
the acquirer's praviously held equity interest in the acquires is remeasured to fair
value at the acquisition date through profit or loss.

Any contingant consideration to be fransferred by the Group is recognised at fair
vafue at the acquisition date, Subsequent changes to the fair value of the
contingant considaration that is deemed to be an asset or liability is recoegnised in
accordance with MFRS 133 sither in profit or loss or as a change to other
comprahensive Income, Contingent consideration that is classifisd as aguity Is not
remeaslred, and its subsaguent sattlement is accounted for within equity. '

The excess of the consideratlon transferred, the amaunt of any non-controlling
interest in the acquiree and the acquisition-date falr value of any previous equity
interest in the acquiree over the fair valus of the identifiable net assets acyuired is
recognised as gaodwill. If the total of consideration fransferred, non-controlling
imterest recognised and previously held interest measured is less than the fair
valbe of the net assets of the subsidiary acquirsd In the case of a bargaln
purchese, the diffsrence 1s recognised diractly in the Income statement.

Intar-company transactions, balances and unrealised galne on transactions
betwsen group companies ars sliminated, Unrealised losses are also sliminated.
Where necessary, amounts reparted by subsidlarles have bsen adjusted to
confarm with the Group's accaunting policies.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 31 DECEMBER 2013 (CONTINUED}

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {CONTINUED)
(d} Basis of consolldation {continued)
(il Associgtes

Associates are all entitles over which the Group has significant influence but not
control, generally accompanying a sharehalding of betwaen 20% and 50% of the
votng rights. Investments in associates are acoounted for using the equity method
of accounting. Under the aquity method, the investment | initlalfy recognlsed at
cost, and the carrying amount Is Increased or decraased to racognise the Investor's
share of the profit or loss of the Investee after the date of acquisition. The Group’s
investrment in assoclates ineludes goadwill identified on acquisition.

If the ownership Interest In an associate is reduced but significant Influence is
rotained. only a proportionate shars of the amounts previcusly recognlsed in other
comprahenslve income is reclassified to profit or loss where appropriate,

The Group’s share of post-acquisiton profit or leas i3 recognissd in the income
statement, and its share of post-acquisiion movements in other comprehansive
Incame is recognised in other comprehensive income with a corresponding
adjustment to the carrying amount of the investment. When the Group's share of
losses in an associate equals or exceeds its interest in the assoclate, including any
other unsecured receivables, the Group does not recognisa further lossas, unless it
has incurred legal or constructive obligations or made payments on behalf of the
associate. |f the associate subsequently reportz profits, the Group resumes
recognising fts share of thase profits only after It share of profits eguals the shars
of losses not recognigsed.

The Group determines at each reporting date whether thers is any objective
avidance that the investment in the associate is impaired, If this is the case, the
Group calculates the amount of impalrment as the difference betwesn the
recoverable amount of the associate and its carrying value and recognises the
armount adjacent to 'share of resulls of associates' in the income statement,

Frofits and losses resulting from upstream and downstream transactions between
the Group and its associates are recognised in the Group's financial statements
only to the extent of unrelated investor's interests In ihe associates. Unrealisad
insses are elimnated untess the ransaction provides evidencs of an Impairment of
the asset transferred. Accounting pollcles of associates have besn changed where
necessary to ensure consistency with the policies adopted by the Group.”

Difution gains and Inssas arising from investmeants In associates ars recognised in
profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — 31 DECEMBER 2013 {CONTINUED}

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
=) Froperty, plant and equipment

Property, plant and eduipment are stated at cost ess accumulated depreciation and
accumutiatad impairmeant losses. The cost of an item of property, plant and squipment
initially recognlsed includes its purchase prics and any cost that is directly attrlbutable to
Bringing the asset ta the location and condition necessary for it fo be capable of operating
in the manner intended by management. Costs also include borrowing costs that are
directly attributabls te the acquisitian, construction or production of a qualitying asset {refer
o accounting policy Note 2(p) on bottawing costs).

Whare sighificant parts of an item of property, plant and squipment are required to be
raplaced at intervals, the Group recognises such parts In the carrying amount of the
property, plant and equipment as a replacemant whan it is probable that {uture scanomic
benefits assoclated with the pars will flow to the Group and the cost of tha parts can be
measured rallably. The carrying amount of the replaced part is derecognized. Al other
repairs and maintenance are racognised as expanses in profit of loss during the period in
which they are incurred.

Significant parts of an itemn of proparty, piant and property are depreciated separaialy over
their estimated useful lives in accordance with the principle in MFRS 116 “Property, Plant
and Equipment”, Depraciation is caiculated using the straight-line method to write-off the

cost of the assels to their residual values over their estimated useful livas. '

The useful lives for this purpose are as follows:

Aircraft _
- Bngines 25 years
- alrframs 8, 13 or 25 yoears
- sarvics polential & or 10 yaars
Aircraft spares 10 years
Aircraft fixtures and fittings Useful life of aircraft ar remaining lease
lertn of aircraft, whichever is shorter
Motor vehicles : 5 years
Office equipment, furniture and fitlings & years

Service potential of 6 yvears represents the period ovar whish the expected cost of the first
major aircraft engine overhaul is depreciated. Subsequent to the engine overhaul, the
actual cost Incurred |s capitalised and depreciated over the subsequent 8 years,

Service potential of 10 years represants the period over which the expected cost of the
first major airframe chack s depreciated, Subseguant to the aldrame check, the actual
cost incurred is capitalised and depreciated over the subsequent 10 years.

Assets not yet in operation are stated at cost and are not depraciated untll the assets are

ready for their intended use. Useful lives of assets are reviewed and adjusted if
appropriate, at the balance shest date,

21



_Company Ne.

i’?amm f i

AIRASIA X BERHAD

(Incorparated in Malaysia)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — 31 DECEMBER 2013 (CONTINUED)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(e]

if)

Property, plant and equipment {continuad)

Residual values, whera appllcable, are reviewead annually against prevalling market values
at the balance shoet date for equivalent aged assets, and depraciation rates are adjusted
accordingly on a prospective basis. For the current financial year ended 31 Desember
213, the estimated residual valus for aircraft airframes and engines is 10% of their cost
(2012 10% of their cost).

An alement of the cost of an acyuired alrcraft is attributad on acquisition te its service
potential reflecting the malntenance condition of its engines and alrframa. This cost, which
can eguale 1o a substantial elemant of the total aircraft cost, is amortised over the shoter
of the pariod to the next check ar the remaining life of the aircrait.

The costs of subsequent major airframe and englne maintenance checks as well as
upgrades to lzased assels are capitalised and amertissd over the shorter of the period 1o
the naxt check ar the remaining life of the aircraft.

Deposits on aircraft purchase are included as part of the cost of the aircraft and are
depreciated from the daie that the alreraft is ready for its infended uze.

At each balance sheet date, the Greup and Company assess whether there is any
indication of impairment. If such an Indication exists, an analysis is performed fo assess
whather the carrying amount of the asset is fully recoverable. A write down |s mads If the
carrying amount exceods the recoverable amount.  See accounting policy Note 2(g) on
impairment of nen-financial assets.

Gaina and lossas on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds with carrying
ameunts and are Included in the income siatements.

Investments in subsidiaries and associates

In the Company's separaie financial stalermnents, inwvestments n subsldiaries and
associates ars stated at cost less accumulated impairment losses. Whare an indication of
impairment axists, the carrying amount of the investment is assessed ard written down
immadiataly to its recoverable amount (see Note 2{(gh}.

Cn disposal of Investments in subsidiaries and associates, the difference between

dispozal proceeds and ihe carrying amounts of the lnvestments are recognised in profit or
loss.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — 31 DECEMBER 2013 (CONTINUED]

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

()

{h)

Impairment of non-financial assets

Assets that are subject o amortisation are reviewed for Impafrment whenever events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An
impairment loss is recopnised for the ameunt by which the carrying amount of the asset
exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount iz the highar of an asset's fair
value less cost to sall and value-in-use. For the purposa of assessing impairment, assets
are grouped at the lowest level for which there aro soeparately identifiable cash flows
(CGUs}.  MNomdflnancial assets other than goodwill that suffered an impaltment. are
revlewad for possible reversal af each reporting data.

Any impairment loss is charged to profit or logs unless it reverses a previous revalugtion in
which case it is charged to the revaluation surplus. Impairment losses on goodwill are not
reversed. In respsct of other assets, any subsaquent increase in rocoverable amount s
recognized in profit or loss unless it reverses an impairment [oss on a revalued asset in
which case it is taken to ravaluatlcn surplus,

Maintenance and ovarhaul

Ownad aircraft

The accounting for the cost of providing major aitirame and certain engine malntenance
checks for own alrcraft is described in the accounting pelicy for property, plant and
squipment {see Note 2(s}).

Leased aircraft

Where the Group and Company have a commitment to maintain alreraft held under
operating leases, a pravision is made durlng the lease term for the rectification obligations
contained within the lease agresments. The provisions are based onh estimated future
costs of major airframe, certain englne maimenance checks and one-off costs incurred at
the snd of the leass by making appropriate charges to the ihcome statements calculated
by reference 1o the nurmber of hours or gycles operated durling the financial yaar,

Leases

A lease is an agreement wheraby the lassor conveys to the lzssee in return for & payment,
ar series of payments, the right to use an asset for an agresd perlod of time.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — 31 DECEMBER 2013 (CONTINUED)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(i)

Leases [continued)

Finance sasas

Leases of property, plant and eguipment where the Group and Company assums
substantially all the benefits and risks of ownership are classified as finance leases.

Finance leases are capitallsed at the commencemant dates of ths respective laases at the
lower of the falr valus of the leased property and tha pressnt value of the minimum lease
payments &l the date of Inception. Each lease payment is aliocated betwesn the llability
and finanse charges so as to achieve a pericdle constant rate of intereet on the balance
outstanding. The correspanding rental cbligations, net of finahce charges, are Included in
payables. The interast element of the finance charge ls charged to the income statements
over the lease period 30 88 10 produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining
balance of the liahility for each period.

Froperty, plant and aquipment acquired under financa Isasa contracts are depreciated
ower the estimated useful fife of tha asset, In accordance with the annual rates stated in
Note 2(e) above. Whare thate is no reasonable certainty that the ownership will be
transferred to the Group and Company, the assef is depreciated over the shorer of the
lease term and its ussful life.

Operating loases

Leases of assets whers a significant portioh of the risks and rewards of ownership are
retained by the lessor are classified as operating leasss. Payments made under operating
loases (nel of incentives received from the lessor) are charged to the income statemants
oh a stralght-line basis over the leaze period.

Assets [eased cut by the Group and Company under operating lsasses are included in
property, plant and equipment in the balance sheets. They are depreclated over their
expected useful |ves on a bagig consistent with similar owned property, plant and
equipment. Rental income {net of any incentives given to lessees) is recognlsed on a
straight line basis ovar the lease term,

Inventorles

lnventories comprising consumables used Intermally for repairs and maintenance and in-
flight merchandisa, are stated at the fower of cost and nat realisable value,

Cost is determined on the weighted average basis, and comprises the purchase price and
Incidentals incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and candftion.

Met realisable valua represents tha aestimated selling price in the ordinary course of
business, less all estimated costs to completion and applicabie varfable salling expenses.
in arriving at net realisable value, due allowancs is made for all damaged, absclete and
glow-rnoving items.

24



Company MNo.
T3S | K

AIRASIA X BERHAD

{Incorporated in Malaysie)
NOTES TC THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 31 DECEMBER 2013 {CONTINUED)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {CONTINUED)
{k) Derivative financial instruments and hedging activities

Detlvatives are initially recagnised at fair value on the date a derivative contract 1s entered
into and are subsequently re-measured at thair falr value,

The methad of recognizing the resulting gain or loss depends on whether the derivative s
designated as a hedging instrumeant, and the nature of the iterm being hedned. Derivallves
that do not qualify for hedge aceounting are classified as held for trading and accounted
for in accordance with the accounting policy set out In Mote 2(v). The Group deslgnates
cartaln derlvatives as hedges of a particular risk associated with a recognised asset or
llabllty er a highly probable forecast transactlon {cash flow hedge).

The Group and Company documant at the Inception of the transaction the relationship
between hedging instrumnents and hedped items, as well as is risk management
objectives and strategy for undaertaking various hedging transactions. The Group and
Company also document thalr assessment, both at hedge inception and on an ongolng
hasis, of whather the darivativas that are used in hedging transactions are highly effsctive
in offsetting changes in cash flows of hedged fems.

Tha fair values of varlous derbvative instruments used for hedying purposes are disclosed
in Mota 17 to the financlal statements. The full falr valus of a hedging derivative is
classifled as a non-current asset or fability when the remaining hedged item is more than
12 months, and as a current asset or liability when the remaining maturity of the hedged
itam is less than 12 months.

Cash flow hedge

The effective portion of changes In the falr value of derivatives that are designated and
qualify as cash flow hedges is recognised In other comprehensive income. The gain or
loss relating to the ineffective portlon is recognised immediately in the income statoments.

Amopunts accumulated in equity are reclassified to the incomes statements in the periods
whan the hedged itern affects profit or loss (for example, when the forecast sale that iz
hodged takes place). The gain or loss relating to the effective portion of interest rate
swaps hedging varfable rate borrowings is recognised in the income statements and
presented separately after net operating profit.

When the forecast transaction that |5 hedoed results in the recognition of a nen-financial
asset (for exampls, Inventory or property, plant and equipment), the gains and losses
previously defarred in equity are transferred from equity and included in the initial
measurement of the cost of the asset. The daferred amounts are ultimately recognised in
the cost of goods sold in the case of Inventory or in depreciation in the case of property,
plant and equipmeant.

Whan a hedging instrument expires or is sold, or when a hedge no longer meets the
eriteria for hedge aceounting, any cumulative gain or loss existing in aguity at that time
remains in equity and is racognised when the forecast transaction s utimately recognised
in profit or losa, When a forscast transaction i3 no longer expected to ocour, the cumulative
gain or loss that was reported In equity is immadiately transferred to the income statement
wilhin ‘other gains/{losses) — net’,
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(1}

(n}

[0}

Recefvables

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for merchandise sold or services
parformad. in the erdinary course of businase. If collsetion is expected in ore year or less
for In the normal operating cycle of the business if longer), they are classiled as current
agssets. Otherwize, they are pressnted as non-current assets.

Trade receivablas are recogrised initially at fair value and subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effactive interest method, less allowance for impairment.

Cash and cash agulvalents

For the purpose of the statements of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise
cash on hand, bank balances, demand dapostis, bank overdrafla and other short-term,
highly llquid invesimenis with original maturites of three months and net of bank
overdrafts. Deposits held as pledged securities for term loans granted are not included as
cash and cash equivalents.

Provisicn
Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present lsgal or constructive obligation
as a result of past events, when it is probable that an outfiow of resources will be reguired
te setfle the obligation, and when a refiable ostimate of the amount can be mada
Provisions are not recognised for future operating lossas.
Share capital
)i Classiflcation
Ordinary shares with discretlonary dividends are classlfied as equity, Other
sharas are classified as equity andfor liahilily according to the economic
substance of the particular instrument,

fii} share issue costs

incremantal external costs direclly attributable 1o the issuance of new shares ot
optlons are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the proceads.

(i) Dividends to sharaholdears of the Campany

Dividends are recognised as a iability in the period in which they are declared. A
dividend declared after the end of the reporting period, but before the financial
staterments are authorised for lssue, is not recognised as a liability at the end of
the reporting period.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(P

Borrowlngs

Borrowings are inftially recognised at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred.
Borrowings ara subsaquently carrled at amortised cost, any difference hetween initial
rocognised amount and the redemption value is recognised in profit or loss over the period
of the barrowlngs using the sfiective interast metho.

Borrowing costs that are directly altrlibutable to the acguisition, construction er production
of gualifying assels, which are assets that necessarily take a substantial petiod of tima to
get ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of those assets, until such
time as the assots are subslantially ready for their intended use or sals.

Investment income sared on the temparary investment of specific borrowings pending
thair expenditure on guallfying assets is deducted from the borrowlng costs sligible for
capitalisation.

All ether borrowing costs are recognisad in profit or loss in the period in which they are
Imcurred.

Fees paid on the establishment of lvan facilities are recognised as transaction costs of the
ltan to the extent that it is probable that some or all of the facility will ba drawn down. |n
this case, the fee is deferred untii the drawdown ocours. To the extent thers |s no evidence
that it is probable that some or all of the facility will be drawn down, lhe fee is capitalised
as a prepayment for liquidity services and amortised over the period of the facility to which
it relateg,

Interest, dividends, losses and gains relating 1o & financial instrurment, or a component
part, classified as a liability fs reported within finance cost In the income statements.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unlsess the Group and Company have an
unconditional right to defer settiement of the liability for at least twelve months after ths
balance sheet date.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES [CONTINUED})

()

Current and deferred income taxes

The tax expanse for the period comprises current and deferred tax. Tax is recognised in
profit or loss, exgept to the extent that it relates to Hems recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in aquity. In this case the tax is also recognised in other
comprehensive incoma ar directly in squity, respectively.

The current income tax charge is caleulated on the basis of the tax laws enacted or
substantively enacted at the end of the reporting period in the countriss where the Group's
subsidiaries and associates operate and generate taxahle income.

Managsemant perlodically evaluates positions taken in tax returns with respect to situations
In which applicable tax regulation is subject to interpretation, It establishes provisions
where appropriate on the basis of amounis expected to be pafd to thae tax autharities. This
lighility 1= measured using the singla baset sstimate of the most fikely outcome.

Beferred tax is recognised, using the [ability method, on temperary differences arising
etween the amounts attributed to assets and liabilities for tax purposes and their carrying
amounts in the financial statements. However, deforrsd tex is not accounted for if it arlses
from initiat recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction other than a business
camkbination that at the time of the transaction affects neither accounting nor taxable profit
ar logs. Deferred tax is determined using tax rates {and tax laws) that have been snacted
ar substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period and are expected 1o apply
when the related deforred taxt asset is realised or the daferrad tax llabliity |s settlad.

Dafarred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probabie that taxabla profit will
be available against which the deductible temporary differances, unused tax losses or
Undzed tax credits can be utilised.

Deferred income tax is provided on temporary differences arising on Investmants in
subsidiaries and associates, excapt for defetred Inceme tax liability whare the timing of the
reversal of the tfemporary diference s controlled by the Group and it is probable that the
temporary difference will not reverse in the foresseable future. Generally the Group is
unable to control the reversal of the temporary difference for assoclates. Only where thers
iz an agresmenl in place that gives the Group the ability to contral the reversal of tha
temporary differences shall not be recognised.

Deferred and income tax assels and llabllitles are offset when thers is a legally
enforceabls right to offsst currant tax asseis against currant tax liabiltles and when the
deferred income tax assets and llabilities relats 1o taxes levied by the same tax authority
on either the taxabls entity or different taxable entities where there is an intentlon to settle
the balances on a net basis.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACGCOUNTING POLIGIES (CONTINUED]

{r)

{8}

Employes hengfits
i Short term employse baneflts

Wages, salaries, paid annual leave and sick leave, bonusss and non-monstary
benefite are accrued in the financial year in which the associated services arg
rendered by the employess of the Group and Company.

fiiy Deafinad contribution plan

The Group's and Compary’s contributions to the Employees’ Provident Fund are
chargad to the Income statemsnt in the period o which they relate. Once the
contributlans have been pald, the Group and Company have no further payment
obligations. Prepaid contributions are recognized as an asset (o the extent that a
eash refund or a reduction in the fulure payments is availabla.

Hewvanue recognition

Revanue from scheduled passengsr flights Is recognised upon the rendeting of
transpartation sarvices and where applicable are stated net of discounts, The value of
soats sold for which services have not been rendsred is included in current liabilitles as
gales in advance,

Fevenueg from chartar fllghts is resognlsed upen the rendering of transporation services,

Fuel surcharge, Insurance surcharge, administrative fees, seat fees, change fess,
convenience fees, excess baggage and bagoage handling fees are recognisad upon the
completlon of services renderad and where applicable, are stated net of discounts. Freight
and other related revenue are recognised upon the completion of sorvices rendered and
where applicable, net of discounts,

Management fees are recognised on an accrual hasis,

Incentives and commission [ncome are recognlsed on an accrual basis in accordance with
the substance of thae relavant agresments.

Interest income is recognised using the effective intarast rmathod.

The Group paricipates in a loyalty pregramms where customers acoumulate paints for
purchases made which entitle them o discounts on future purchases. Award points are
recognised as a cost of sale at the time of issus while revenue from the award points s
recognised when the poinis are redeemed. Tha amount of revanua |s based on the
number of points redesmead and the redemption valus of sach polnt. Award points axpire
36 months after the initial sale.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
(i Foreign currencies
{ih Functional and presentation currency

ltems ingluded in the financial statemems of each of the Group's entities are
measlred using the currency of the primary econamic environment in which the
entity operates {“the functional currensy”). The financial statemenis are presentad
in Ringgit Malaysia, whish is the Company’s functional and presentation curreney.

(i} Transaclions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the
axchange rates prevajling at the dates of the fransactions or valuation whars tems
ars re-measured. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the
settlement of such transactions and from the translation at year-end exchange
rates of monetary asssts and llabillties denominated in forgign currencies ars
recognised in profit or loss, sxcept when deferred in other comprehiensive incoms
as qualifying cash flow hedges and qualtfying net investmeant hedges,

Foreign exchange gains ard losses arising from operations are includsd In
arfiving at tha operating profit. Foreign exchangs gains and losses arising from

- borrowings {afler effects of effective hedges) and amounts dus fram associates
ars separately disclosed after net operating profit.

(N Group companiss

The resulls and financlal position of all entities within the Group {nona of whigh
has the currenay of a hyperinflationary acanomy} that have a functional currency
difterent from the presentation currency are translated into the presentation
cutrency as follows:

£i} assets and liabiliies for each balahce sheet presented are translated at
the closing rate at the date of that balance shest;

{ii) income and expenses for each income statement are translated at
avetage exchange rafes (unless thls average is not a reasonable
approximation of the cumulative effect of the rates prevaiing on the
transaction dates, in whizh case Income and expenses ars translated at
tha dafes of the transacticns); and

{iii) all rasulting exchange differences are recoghlsed as a separate
companatt of eguity.

On cansclidation, exchangse differsnces arfsing from the transiatlon of the nat
invastment in foreign oparations are taken to sharsholdsre’ equity, When a forelgn
operation |s disposed of or sold, such exchange differences that were recorded in
efjuity ara recognised in the income statements as part of the gain or lass on
disposal,
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUEL)

(L)

Contingent llabllitles

The Group and Coempany do net recognise a contingant ligbility but discioses its existance
in the financiat statements, A contingant liability is a possible obligation that arises fram
past evenls whose existence wilf be confirmed by uncertaln future events beyond the
control of the Group and Company, or a present obllgation that is ot recognised hacause
it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation, A
contingent liability also arises in the extremely rare circumstance whoere there is a liability
that cannot be recognised because it cannot.be measured reliably.

The Group and Company recogniss separatsly the contingant llabilities of the acquirses
as part of allecating the cost of a business combination whare thalr fair values can ba
measured reliably. Where the fair values cannot be measured rellably, the resulting affact
will ba reflactad in the goodwill arlsing from the acqulsitlons.

Subsequent to the Inltlal recognlition, the Group and Company measure the contingent
lablities that are recognised separately at the date of acguisition at the higher of the
amount that would bs reconnised in accordance with the provisions of MFRS 137
“Provisions, GContingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets” and the amount initially
regognised less, when appropriate, cumulative amortisation recognized in accardance with
MERS 118 "Bevenua”.

Financial assets

iy Classification
The Group classifies its financial agsets in the followlng sategories: at fair value
through profit or less and loans and recsivables. The classification depends on the
purpose for which the financial assels were acguired. Management detsrmines
the classifleation at mittal recognition.

Flnancial assets at falr value throygh proflt or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are financial assets helg for
trading. A financial asset is classified in this category i it is asqulred or incuresd
principally for tha purpose of salling or rapurchasing it In the near term. Darivatives
are also categortsed as held for trading unless they are designated as hedges
(see Mote 2(kh). Assets in thls category are classified as current assets if expecied
te be settled whhin 12 menths; atherwise, they are classified a8 nen-current,

Loans and receivables

Loars and recelvablas are non-derivattve financial assets with fixed or
detsrminable payments that are not guoted in an active market. Theay are included
in gurrent assets, except for maturities greatsr than 12 months after the and of the
reparting period. These ara classified as non-current asssts. The Group's and
Company's loans and recelvablas comprlse 'trade and other racelvabies’,
‘ameunts due from related pariles’, "amount due from an associate’ and 'deposits,
pash and bank balances' in the halance sheet,
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(v} Financial assets (continued)

{iE)

{ii}

Recognition and initial measurement

Regular purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on the trade-dats,
the data on which the Group cornmits to purchase or sell the asset.

Financlal assets are initially recognised at fair valus plus transaction costs for all
flnancial assets not carred at fair valus through proflt o loss, Financial assets
carried at fair value through profit or loss are initlally recognised at fair value, and
transaction costs are expensed in proflt or logs.

Subsequent maasurermant — gaing and lossas

Financial assels at fair valus through profit or loss are subssguantly carried at falr
valua. Loans and receivables are subsequently carried at amortigsd cost using the
effactive interest mathod.

Changes in the falr values of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss,
Including the effects of currenesy translation, intersst and dividend income are
racognisad i the income statement in the peried in which the changes arise.

Subseduent measurement — Impairment of financial assets
Assets carried at amortised cost

The Group assesses at the end of the reporting period whether there is ohisctive
evidence that a financial assst or group of financial assets ia impaired. A financial
asset or a group of financial assels is Impaired and impairment lossss are incurred
only if there is objacilve evidence of impairment as a result of one of more events
that cccurred afler {he Initlal recagnition of the asset (a 'loss event’) and that loss
gvent {or events) has an impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial
asset or group of financial assats that can ba refiably estimated.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
(i) Financlal assets {continued}
{iv) Subsequent maasuremant — Impairment of financial agsets (continued)

The critaria that the Group uses to determing that there is objective evidence of an
Impalrment loss include:

. Significant financlal difficulty of the issusr or obligor;

= A breach of contract, such as a dafaull or dslinguancy in interast or
principal paymeants;

a The Group, for economic ar legal reasons relating to the borrower's

financlal difficulty, granting to the botrower a concession that the lender
would nat otherwise considar;

. It becomes probable that the borrower will enter bhankruptoy or othar
financial reorganisation;

. Disappearance of an active market for that financial asset becausa of
fingncial difficultias; or

. Observable data indicating that there iz 2 msasurabls decreaszae In the

estimated fulure cash flows from g portfolio of financlal assets since the
initial recognition of those assets, although the dacrease cannot yet be
identified with the Individual financial asssts in the portfella, including:

(M adverse changes in the payment status of borrowers in the
portiolio; and )
(iip national or local economic conditionsg that correlate wilh defaults

on the assets in the portfolio.

The amount of the |oss is measured as the difference betweeh the asset's
carrying amaunt and the present value of estimated future cash flows {excluding
future credit losses that have not been incurred) discounted at tha financial assot's
original effective interest rate. The asset's carrying amount is reduced and the
amount of the loss is recognised in the income statement. I ‘oans and
receivables” have a variable interest rate, the discount rate for measurlng any
impairment loss is the current effective interast rate determined under the
contract. As a practical expedient, the Group may measure impairment an the
basig of an instrument’s fair value using an ohservable market price.

If, In & subsequent period, the amount of the impairmeant 1oss decreases and the
decrease can be relatad objectively te an event occurring afler the impairment
was recognised {such as an improvement in the debtor's credit rating), the
reversal of the previously recognised impairment Inss |s recognised in the income
slaternant.

Whan an asset i uncollectible, It Is writen off against the related allowarce

account. Such assets are written off after all the nacessary procedures have been
complstad and the amount of the loss has heon datermined.

a3



Caormpany Na,

7ie | K

AIRASIA X BERHAD
(Incorporated in Malaysia)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 31 DECEMBER 2013 {CONTINUED)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {CONTINUED)

{v}

Financial assets {continued)
fi) Dre-recognltion

Financial aszets are de-recognised when the rights to recaive cash flows from the
investmants have axplred or have been transfarred and the Group hes transterred
substantially all risks and rewards of ownership,

CHigetting financlal instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offsat and the net amount is presented in the batance
sheet when there iz a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and Lthare
is an intention io settle on a net basls, or realise the assst and settle the liabillty
simultanecusly.

Trada and othar payables

Trade payables are obligatlons to pay for goeds or ssrvices that have been acquired in the
ordinary courss of business from suppliers. Accounts payable are classified as current
fiabilities # paymant ls dus within one year or less (or in the normal operating cycle of the
business il lenger). If not, they are presenied as non-clrrert liabilities,

Trade payables are recognised initially at fair value and subseguently measured al
amarised cost using the effective interest mathod.
Segment reporting

Operating segments are reportad in a manner consistent with the internal reporting
provided to the chief operating decislon-maker, The chief operating decision-maker, who is
responsible for allocating resources and assessing performance of the operating
segments, has been identified as the Chief Executive Officer that makes strategic
decisions.

34



Campany Mo,
34181 | K

AIRASIA X BERHAD

fIncorporated in Malaysia)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — 31 DECEMBER 2013 (CONTINUED)

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGMENTS

Estimates and judgments are continually evaluated by the Directors and are based on historicai
axperience and other factors, inciuding expectations of future svents that are believed to be
reasonable undst the circumstances,

The Graup and Company make estimates and assumptions corcerning the future. The resulting
accounting estimates will, by dsfinltion, rarely equal the related actual results. To enhance the
information content of the estimates, certain key variables that are anticipated to have a material
impact to the Group’s and Company's results and financial position are tested for sensitivity 1o
changes in the underlying parameters.

The sstimates and assumptions that have a significant rigk of causing a material adjustment to the
carrying atnounts of assets and liabilitiss within the next financial year are outlined below:

(i) Estimated useful lives and resldual values of aircraft frames and engines

The Group reviews annually the estimated useful lives and residual values of aircraft
frames and englines hased on factors such as business plan and strategies, expectad lavel
of usage, futurs technologlcal developments and market prices,

Fuiure results of opsrations could be materially affected by changss in these satimeates
brought about by changes in the factors mentioned above. A reduction of 5% In the
residual values of alroraft aiframes and engines as disclosed in Nots 2(8), would increase
the recarded depreciation for tha financial vear ended 31 Decembar 2013 by RM3,794,000
(2012: RM2,425,000) and decrease the carrying amount of property, plant and equipment
as at 31 December 2013 by RME,604,000 (2012; RiV4,521,000).

{ii} Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent thad it |s probable that feture taxabls
profits will be available against which temporary differsnces can be utilised. Estimating the
future taxable profits involves significant assumptions, especially in respsact of requlatary
approvals for prospecilve routes, aircraft delivery, fares, load factors, fuel price,
maintenance cost and currency movements.
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FEVEMNIIE

Group | Lompany

2013 2012 2013 2M2

RRIGO0 R0 ALTO0G RM'000

Schaduled flights 1,406,447 1,283,577 1,406,447 1.283.577
Refunds (1,796} {1,799 {1,706) {1,799}
1,404,651 1,281,778 1,404 551 1,281,778

Charter flights 107,001 67,848 107,001 a7, 848
Fuel surcharge 253,838 148,226 253,838 148,226
Fraight and cargo 30,018 V9267 90,018 79,267
Ancillary revenus 452,484 263,834 452 444 353,834

Managamesnt foos 347 64 -
Other revenus - 26,010 . 268,010

2,308,380 1,987,427 2,308,003 1,967,063

Angillary revenue includes adrninistrative and other foes, seat fees, change fees, convenience
fees, excess baggage fess, Inflight sales, and other liems and services.

Cther revenue in the previous financial year was in respect of passengers on scheduled flights that
were subsaguantly ra-accommodated to flights by other airlines.

STAFF COSTS

L Sroup Company
2013 2012 2013 2012
RR'O00 BrLO0a Eh'000 R 000

Wages, salaries, bonuses and
gllowanoes 214,784 165,828 212120 162,717

Defined contribution retirament
plan 18,205 14,570 18,058 14,353
Share option exponsa (Note 24} Eaa - . 5o .
233,601 180,498 230,700 177 070

Included in staff costs Is Directors’ remunaration which |s analysed as follows:

Group and Company

2013 2012
RM'000 HM'D00

Mon-sxecutive Directors
Fegs 501 120
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STAFF COSTS (CONTINUED)
The remuneration payable to the Directors of the Company is analysad as follows:

MNon-axecyutive

2013 2012
HBI"ICIE of remunaration
Less than BM100, 000 2 -
RIM100,001 to BM150,000 1 1

Tha details of outstanding optlons over the ordinary shares of the Company granted under ESOS
o the sligibls employsess and Directors are disclosad in Note 24 to the financial statements.

OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES

The following lterms have heen charged/{credited) in arriving at other oparating expenses:

Group Company
2013 2012 2013 2012
RNT000 RLPOOD RM 000 RM'OO0
Management feg - - 2972 4 835
Rental of land and buildings 2,028 1,774 1,856 1,711
Auditors' remuneration
- Current year statutory audit . 340 327 ded 268
- Foes for audit related servicas ™ 4,475 - 4,475 .
Rantal of aguipment 206 287 295 : 2e7
Mel faraign exchanges (galnploss
on operations
- Realised (744) 7,844 (744} 7 844
- Unrealised . (15,816} 4,534 {15,754} 4,835
Sponsorship expenses 142 1,245 142 1,245
Advertising expenses 67,460 43,262 &7, 724 43 648
Crodit card charges 25,508 18,33 25,808 18,331
in-flight maal axpanses 21,389 17,025 21,389 16,466
Insurance axpensas 13,204 12,847 13,204 12,942
Fenalty costs on early termination of '
contract - 560 - 560
FPenalty cosls on charter contract - 1,288 - 1,286
Impairment of receivables 552 1,645 852 1,545
Property, plant and equlpment written off " 23 - "

M Feas incurred in connection with the role as raporting accountant in relation o the Listing of the
Company
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OTHER INCOME

.. _Group . _Company
2013 2012 2013 2012
BRIO00 RRAD00 BRODO RM'000

Gaih on disposal of property,
plant and equlpment - 1,148 - 1,148
Commission ineome from insurance 5,841 3,482 6,841 3,482
Others 14,580 2,341 14,660 1,481
20,401 8,981 20,401 G,121

Ciher income (‘others’) inciudes incentives received/receivable by the Group and Company frem
certain airpert Buthoritiss.

OTHER GAIN

Other galn repressnts the unreallsed gain ariging from fuel contracts held for trading.
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FINANCE INCOME/COSTS)

Finance income:

Interest income on deposits
with licensed bank

Interest Income on deposits
for leased aircraft

Finahcs costs:

Interest expense on bank borrowings
Bank facilities and ather charges

Forsign exchange
{logzas)/nalns:

Unraalized foreign exchange (losses)
galng on:

- Borrowings
- Deposits and bank balances

Fair value movement recyclad from
cash flow hedge reserve
Fealised forsign exchange (lossesi/gain

Net foreign exchange (lnsses)/gains

Group Company

2012 2012 2013 2012
RKPOOD RA'000 RIOG0 RMODD
3,032 1,084 3,028 1,058
579 812 579 812

381 1,878 3,608 1,871
(72,909) {54,514} (72,909) (54,514}
{3.513) {1,824} (3,513) {1,824}
(76,422) {56,438) (76,422) {56,438}
(119,629) 40,542 (114,529) 40,542
1,034 2,808 1,084 2,900
(118,595 43,451 (118,595) 43,451

40,528 - 40,925

(38,505 148 (98,508) 148
(176,171} 43,599 (178,171} 43,508
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TAXATION

Current taxation:

- Mataysian taxation

- Foraign 1axation
Deforrad taxation
Tolal tax (cradit)/expense

Currant taxation:
- Current financial year

- Over accrual In prior year

Total currant tax

Deferrad taxatlon (Note 12):
- Origlhation and reversal of

temporary differences

Group . Company
20143 2012 2013 a2
R 0080 RM'000 FM D00 RKIOO0
TeT (BB TET {BB3)
270 {57 : i
(124,790} 5055  (124,790) 4,958
{123,793} 4,155 {124,063) 4 096
a9y 319 727 356
- {1,218 - (1,219)
o7 {800} 727 (863)
(124,700 5,055 (124,780) 4,859
(123,753} 4,155 4,006

{124,063)

The explanalion of the relationshlp between taxation and (loss)/profit before taxatlon is as

follows.

{Loss}profit bafora taxation

Tax calcwated at Malaysian tax

rate of 26% (2012 25%)

Tax effects of:

- Owver acerual in prior vear

- Tax incentives

- Exponses not deductibla for

tax purposes

- Imcome not subject to tax
- Changes in statutory tax rate

Taxation

Group _— Company

2013 2012 2013 2012
RM'000 RIO00 RMOD0 RM'O00
(212,080} 38,005 (212,142) 37,633
{53,015) 9,50 {53,035} 9,408
- (1,219} - {1,218
{111,744} - (111,744) -
30,302 5,492 30,052 5,526
Lo (9,619) - {9,619)
10,664 - 10,664 -
{123,793 4,188 (124,083 4,098
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AIRASIA X BERHAD
(Ineorporated in Malaysla)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — 31 DECEMBER 2013 (CONTINUED}

TAXATION (CONTINUED)

The Ministry of Financs has granied approval to the Company undar Sactlon 127 of Incorme Tax
Act, 1867 for income tax exemption in the form of an Investment Allowance (A" of 50%% on
gualifylng expenditurs incurred within a period of & years sommencing 1 September 2009 to 31
August 2014, to be set off against 70% of the statutary income for each year of assessment. Any
unutilised allowance can be caried forward to subsedquent years until fully utilised. The amount of
incomes exempied from tax is credited to a tax-exempt account from which tax-exempt dividends

can ba declarad.

FROFPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIFMENT

Group and Company

Met book valus

Aircraft engines, aiframs and
aarvice potential
Alrcraft spares
Motar vehleles
CHfice equipment, furniture and fittings
Assats not yet in operation

At 31 December 2013

Aircraft sngines, airframe and
aarvice potential
Afrcraft spares
Maotor wehicles
Office equipment, furniture and fittings
Assets not yet in cperation

At At 31

1 January Dapreciation December
2013  Additions chargeg 2013

BRIO00 RAGO0 RM'OO0 R 000
1.252.274 1,017,198 {107,796) 2,161,678
14 20,083 {11,682) 78872

825 1,614 {485) 1,844

1,582 24z {605) 1,219

30,802 - 30,802

1,825,822 1,060,949 (120,558) 2,275,213

Accumulated

Accumulated impairment Met book
Cost _depreciation losses value
RAO00 RMO00 BM'O0G RM'O00
2,567 336 {378,612} (29,047) 2,181,676
133,674 {43,374} {10,628) 79,572
4,407 {2,463} - 1,944
5,430 {3,801} {410 1,219
40,802 . - 30,802
2,741,548 (426,251} (40,085) 2,275,213
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AIRASIA X BERHAD

{Incarporated in Malaysia)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — 31 DECEMBER 2013 {CONTINUED)

FHOPERTY, PLANT ANMD EQUIPMENT [CONTINUED)

Group

Met book value

Ajrcraft sngines,

airframe &nhd

setvice potentlal
Ajroraft spares
WMotor vehicles
Office equipment,
furmiture and fitings

At 31 December 2412

Aircraft engines, airframe and

service potential
Alrcraft spares
Motor vehicles

Office equipment, furnitura

and fittinga

At At 3
1 January Written- Depreclation  Decembar
2012 Additlons off [Disposals charge __201e
RK'000 RA Q00 R GO0 R000 F'000 R D00
1,345,880 1,462 - (45,068) 1,252,274
72020 35470 {25,B42) (10,507 71,141
1,3¥9 - (G54 A25
2.222 357 £23) {8} (258) 1,582
1,421,501 37,280 {23} {25,848} {107,087} 1,325,822
Accumulatad
Accumulatesd impairmant Bat book
Cost  _depreciation .. _|lozsas value
RiA'C00 BrC00 Ri'GO0 RM'000
1,650,138 {265,817 (29,047 1,252 274
113,481 (31,712 10,628) 71,141
2793 {1,068} - 825
5188 {3,196} (410 1,582
1,671,600 (305,693) {40,085) 1,525,822
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AIRASIA X BERHAD
(Incorporated In Malaysla)

NOTES TO THE FINANGIAL STATEMENTS —~ 31 DECEMBER 2013 (CONTINUED)

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIFMENT {CONTINUED)

Company
Mat book valus

Alrcraft enginss,
alrfrarme and
sarvice potantlal

Ajroraft spares

Motor vehloles

Office equipment,
furniture and fittings

At 31 December 2042

Ajroraft engines, aiframe
and service potential

Alrcraft spares

Motor vehicles

Office equipment, furniture
and fittings

At At 33

1 January Uepreciation  December
2012 Addifions  Disposals charge 2012
RAM'D00 RrMOO0 RN 000 BA"000 BMO00
1,345,880 1,462 - {595,068) 1,252,274
72,020 35,470 {25,842 {10,507 71,141
1,378 - {554 325
2,198 a57 (8] (BER) 1,682
1,421 478 a7 288 {25,848} (107.087) 1,425 822

Accumitlatend

Accumulated impairmaeant Mat hook
Coest  _depreciation Inezes _... value
AM'000 R Q00 RrD00 RM'DO0
1,650,138 [2GR,817) {29.047} 1,282,274

113,481 (31,712 {10,628 1,141
2,783 (1,968 - 225
5,188 (3,196 {410} 1,582
1,671,600 {:305,693) 1,325,822

{40,085}
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AIRASIA X BERHAD

{Incorporated in Malaysia)

NOTES TOC THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — 31 DECEMBER 2013 (CONTINUED)

FPROPERTY, FLANT AND EQUIFMENT (CONTINUED)

Included in propetty, plant and equipment of the Group and Gompany are alreraft pledged as

security for borrowings (Mote 23) with & net book value of AM2 088 milion {2012 RMI 224
mifflonh.

The beneficial ownership and operational control of certain aircrafl pledged as security for
barrowings rests with the Company when the aircraft is deliversd to the Company.

Whers the legal title to the aircraft is held by the financiers during delivery, the legal title will be
tranaferrad to the Company ofty Upon settlerment of the respective facilities.

During the financlal year, the Company re-assessed the estimatad useful life of its engine service
potential, which In resulted in a revision of the estimated ussful life of angine service potential to 6 -
years, The reduction in depreciation charges for the financial year arsing from the rewvision
amounted to BM18,4071 000,

DEFERRED TAXATION

Deferred tax assets and liabilitiss ars offset when there is a legally enforceable right to set off
currant tax assets against currant tax llabllitles and when deferred taxes relate to tha same tax
authority. Tha following amounts, determined after appropriate offsetting, are shown in the balance
shasts:

Group . ___Company

2013 2012 2013 2012

RLO00 BrO00 - RM'ODO AR OO0

Dafarred tax azsets 358 630 234,840 359 530 234,340

The movements in deferred tax assets and liabilitiss during the financlal year are as follows:

e _GEIOUR Company

2013 2012 2013 2012

R OO0 RO00 HL'GOD RRO0O0

At beginning of financial year 234,840 238,885 234,840 230,700
{Charged}/credited to income

statarnont (Mote 100

- Property, plart and equipment 27,058 (7,868) 27,058 {7,868

- Unrealised foreign exchange differences (1,668] - 785 {1,568) 785

- Tax lozses (681) 1,856 (891} 1,858

- Tax incentives 85,890 - 89,869 -

- Others ge 172 g2 268

124,780 {5,055) 124,780 {4,958)

At and of financial year 358,630 234,840 358,630 234,840
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AIRASIA X BERHAD

{Incorporated in Malaysia)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ~ 31 DECEMBER 2013 (CONTINUED)

DEFERRED TAXATION (CONTINLIED)

. Laroup Company
2013 2012 2013 2012
RNO00 R 000 HIA'GO0 HIA'D00
Deferred tax assets (before offsetting
- Tax incentives 284,280 184,391 284,280 184,391
- Tax ngses 16,508 17, 289 18,558 17,289
- Proparty, plant and squiprent 59,371 22,313 59,37 34,313
- Unrealised forsign exchange differences 396 570 36 578
- Othets 360 268 360 268
361,015 234,840 361,015 234,840
Offeatting {1,385) - {1,385 -
Deferred tax assets (after offsetting} 359,630 234,840 359,630 234,840
Peferred tax liakility (befors ofisetting}
- Unrealised foraign exchanges diffsrances 1,385 - 1,385 -
Cifzetting {1,385} - (1,385) -

Peferrad tax liakiity {after offsetting) - - - -

As disclosed in Note 3 to the financial stataments in respect of critical aceounting estimatas and
judgmeants, the defarred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that future
taxable profits will be avaffable against which temporary differences can be utilised. Estimating the
future taxable profits involves significant assumptlons, especially in respect of regulatory approvals
for prospective routes, aircraft dellvery, fares, load factors, fuel price, maintenance cast and
currency movements. These assumptions have been built based on past psHormance and
adjusted for non-recurting circurnstances and a regsonable growth rate.

DEPOSITS OM AIRCRAFT PURCHASES
The deposits on aircraft purchases ars denominated In US Bollar and are in respect of pre-delivery
payments on aircraft purchases. Pre-dsllvety payments constitute instalments mads In respect of

the price of the aircraft and are deducted from the final price on dalivary.

The deposits as at 31 December 2013 are in regpsct of aireraft purchases which will be delivered
between January 2014 1o May 2025,

During the financial year snded 31 December 2013, the Group and Company capitalised

borrowlng costs amounting to BM10,480,000 (2012: RM10,551,000} on gualifying assets.
Barrowing costs were ¢apitalised at the rate of 5.48% (2012: 4.62%) per annum.
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AIRASIA X BERHAD

(Incorporated in Malaysia)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ~ 31 DECEMBER 2013 {CONTINUED)

OTHER DEPOSITS

ther deposits include deposits paid for malntetance of aircraft and deposits paid to lessors for
lezsed aircralt, Thess deposits are denominated in US Dotlar.

INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

Unguoted investments, at cost

# Denotes RM250 (2012 RM250).

The details of the subsldlaries are as follows:

Group's affective

Company

2013 2012
R 000 RIETO00
# #

Country of aquity Interast
Mame _ incorpoeration 2013 2012 Principal activitias
% %o
AirAsia X Services _

Pty Ltd * Australia 100 100 Provision of management
Ingistical and marketing
saricos

Airdaia X NZ Lid* New Zoaland 100 100 Frovision of managemant
loglslical and marketing
services

AdY Caplial Lid fNalaysta 100 100 Dormant

AAX Leasing ]

Limlted Malaygia 100 1400 Engine laasing

* Mot audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers, Malaysia

INVESTMENT IM AN ASSOCIATE

,_ Group . Company
2013 2012 2013 2012
BAT000 RMDO0 R 000 R GO0

Unguoted investments, at cosi 20,018 - 20,018

Group's share of post-

acguisition lossos (&02% - -

19,616

- 20,018
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 31 DECEMBER 2013 {CONTINUED)

INVESTMENT IN AN ASSOCIATE (CONTINVED?
The details of the assoclate is as follows:

Principal placa

of buginess/ Group's effactive

country of equlty Interest
MName incorporation 2018 2012 Prinsipal astivities
% %
Thai AirAsia X
Co bLtd ("TAAX Thailand 49% Commercial air iransport

sarvices
Cn 18 September 2013, the Company entered into a Sharehalders' Agresment with twa parties for
tha purpase of establishing a co-operation to set up a leng-haul low cost alrline in Thailand which
wlll operate through a Thalland thcorporated entity, Thai AAX Co., Ltd. The Gompany subscribed
to 38,200,000 ordinary sharss, representing 4%% of the paid-up share capital of TAAX for a
consideration of THB 186,000,000 {sguivalant to RM20,018,000).
TAAX Is a private company for which there s no quoted market price available for its shares.
There are no contingent liabilities relating to the Group’s investrmaent In TAAX,

Summarised financial Information for associate

Set out balow are the summarised financial Infermation for the assoclate which is accountad far
using the equity mathod:

Summarised balance sheat

TAAX
2013 2012
RM'O00  BRYDGO
Currani
Cash and cagh eguivalants 31,891
Other current assets 7,741
Tatal current assels 39872
Mon-current
Assets 1,542 -
Financial llabilltles {15} .
Othar liabilities (1,270
Total current liakikities {1,285)

Met asaeis

39,829
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{Incarpoerated in Malaysia)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 31 DECEMBER 2013 (CONTINUED)

INVESTMENT IN AN ASSOCIATE (CONTINUED)

summarised financial information for the associate (continugd}

Summarlsed statement of comprehensive incorme

Maintenance, ovarhaul, user charges and
other relatad exponses

Other operating expenses

Interast Income

Loss bafors and after tax
Other camprehensive income
Total comprahensive loss

Dividend receivaed from associats

Beconciliation of summariged financlal information

Operating net asssts at 1 January
Imvestment during the financial year
Loss for the financial year

Closing net assets at 31 Decamber

Intorast in assoclate {(45%)

Zarrying value at 31 December

48

TAAX
for pericd ended
21 Decomber

2013 2012
B D00 RGO

(745)
{333)
55

{1,024)

{1,024}

TAAX,

2013 2012
RM'000 RW00

40,853
{1,024)

38,829

18,516 -

19,518 -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ~ 31 DECEMBER 2013 (CONTINUED)

DERIVATIVE FINANCEAL INSTRUMENTS

Group and Company

e 2013 2012
Assetls Liabilities Assots Liabllities
RK'000 RI'G00 R 000 RILIOGCO

Mon-gurrent

Forward foreign exchange
contracts — cash flow hedges 60,388

Current

Commodity darivatives
— hald far trading 5,541 - -

The full falr valus of a hedging derivative |s classified as & non-current asset if the remaining
maturity of the hedge item is more than 12 months and, as a current asset, if the maturity of the
hadged ltem Is less than 12 menths. Derlvatives held for trading are those which do not gualify for
hedge accounting.

{i}

Forward foreign exchange contracts

The notional principal amaunts of the cutstanding forward foreign exchange contracts at
31 December 2013 were BM741., 1million (2012: MIN.

The Group entared inte 3 oross currency intarest rate swap contracts ("CCIRS") to hedge
against fluctuation in the foreign exchange currency and interest rates on Its 3 ety
delivered aircraft during the financial yoar.

Under the CCIRS facllities, the Company converted the aircraft loans whereby:

a.  The USD principal repayments throughout the tenure of 10 and 12 years will be paid
In RM at an exchangs rats of USD1 to RM3.0260, BM3.0855 and RM3.1875
respectivety; and

b. The LUSD interests of 3-month London Interbank Offered Rate ("LIBOR") plus a
margin ranging betwesn 0.80% and 3.75% will be paid at a AM fixed rate of hetween
3.83% and 7.03% per annum for the entire tenure of the 3 loana.

Gaing and losses recognised In the cash flow hedge reserve in aquity will be continuously
released to the income statement within forsign exchange gainsi{losses) until the full
rapaymant of the alrcraft loans (Note 23 to the financial statements).

el contracts
The outstanding number of barrels of Singapors Jet Kerosens derivative contracts at 31
December 2013 was 187,778 barrsls (2012 NI} As at 31 December 2013. the Group

entered into Singapore Jet Kerosene fixed swap contracts with a related party during the
financial year, where the contracts are classified as derivatives heid for trading,

A9
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ~ 31 DECEMBER 2013 (CONTINUED)

INVENTORIES
Group ang Compary
2013 2012
RI'O00 RM'C00
Beverages, consumables and In-flight merchandiss D83 806
HRECEIVABLES AND PREPAYMENTS
o . _EEFOLD . Company
2013 2012 2013 2012
RMO00 ROO0 R OO0 R OG0
Trade recalvables 43,675 31,091 43,675 30,741
Other recolvables _ 45,2458 33,235 458210 33813
Frapaymetits 43,277 24,255 43,275 24,255
Deposits 33,600 42 394 33,600 42,384
166,797 131,675 168,760 731 ,EIDE
Less: Allowanea for impaltmant
of racalvables {1,441 (BB {1,441} {BRIY
185,368 130,786 165,318 130414

—— ez | P

The normal cradil terms of the Group and Company range from 15 to 30 days {2012: 15 to 30 dayal.

fa) Trade receivables

(i}

{ii}

Financial assets that are naither past due nor impaired

Trade receivables that are neither past due nor impaired for the Group and
Company of RM24,302,000 {2012: RME,477.000 and RMB, 127,000 respectively,
are substantially from companles with good collection track records.

Financial assets that ars past due but not impaired
As of 31 December 2013, trade recefvables of AM12177.000 (2012
AM22.418,000) of the Group and Company, were past due but not impalred.

Thase debts relate 30 a numbar of independent customars for whotn there s ro
racant history of default.

&80
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NOTES TO THE FINANGIAL STATEMENTS — 31 DECEMBER 2013 (CONTINUED}

RECEIVABLES AND PREPAYMENTS (CONTINUED)
{&) Trads recalvables
£l Financial assets that are past due but not impaired {continued)

The ageing anatysis of these trade receivables that are past due but not impaired is

as follows:
Gravp and Company
2013 2012
BM'GOO Ri'D00
Lass than 30 days 2,248 3,184
EBetween 31 and 50 days 2,540 5,827
Betwoon 61 and 80 days B3 10,717
Balween 81 and 120 days 35 207
Beotween 121 and 180 days - 2,241
Bdora than 180 days 14,300 242
19,177 22,418

Trade recetvables that are past dus but not Impalred includes an amount due
from a custorner of RM13,545,000 (2012: R 14,441,000). The Ditectors of the
Company have assessed the recoverabillty of this amount and are of the view
that the balance of RM13,545,000 is recoverable within 12 months from the
balancs sheet date.

{ii)  FInanclal assets that are past dus and/or Impaired

The carrying amounts of trade recelvables individually determined to be Impaired are as

follows:
Group and Company
2013 2042
RMOO0 Rk O00
Mora than 180 days 148 198
Lesa: Allowance for impairmert of receivables {198} {106}

The individually impaired trade receivables ara mainly related o disputed halances
with customers or balances for which management is of the view that the amounts
may not be racoverable.

51
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — 31 DECEMBER 2013 (CONTINUED)

RECEIVABLES AND PREPAYMENTS (CONTINUED)

(a Trade recefvahles {continued)

(i)

Financial assets that are past due andfor impaired {continued)

Movernents on the allowanae for impaimmant of trads recelvables are as follows:

_ Group Company

203 2012 2013 2012

RMO00 RM'O00 RA'000 R'DO0

At 1 January 1496 184 196 184
mpairment - 12 - 12
At 31 Dacember 198 195 198 1805
T [=——0—00-.

{by Other receivables

)

Financiel assets that are neither past due nor impaired

Other recelvables that are nelther past due nor impaired of BRi31,818,000 and
RM31,784,000 (2012: RM25,454,000 and RM25,432.000) for the Group and

Company respectively, are substantially with companles with good collection track
records.

Financial assets that ars past due but not impaired

As at a1 Decamber 2013, other receivables for the Group and Company of
MM13,181,000 (2012: BM7,788,000) were past dus. These dabts relate to a
number of external parties whers there is no expeclation of default. The ageing

analysis of these other receivables that are past due but not impaired is as
followes:

Group and Sompary

2013 2012

RIO00 RIGO0

Lesg than 30 days 2126 o962
Estweon 31 and 680 days 885 1,324
Betwesn 61 and 30 days 1379 1,410
Between 91 and 120 days 1,634 1,491
Between 121 and 180 days 2,756 1,475
Mere than 180 days 4,361 1,124
13,181 7.7B8

S
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AIRASIA X BERHAD

{Incarporated in Malaysia)

NOTES TO THE FINANGIAL STATEMENTS -~ 31 DECEMBER 2013 (CONTINUED)

RECEIVABLES AND PREFPAYMEMTS (CONTINUED)

(b} Other receivables (continued)

(i)

FInancial assets that are past due and/er impaired

The carrying amounts of other receivables individually determined to be impaired
ara &s follows:

_ Garoup and Company

2013 202

B4 000 R"000

More than 180 days 1,245 853
Lesz: Allowance far impairment of receivables {1,245} (553

[Pr—

The individually impalred other receivables are mainly related to disputed
balances with customers or balances for which management is of the view that
the amounts may not be recoverable.

Mervaments on the allowance for Impajrment of other receivables are as follows:

o Group Company

2013 2012 203 2012

R 000 RIA"O00 AkA'G00 BrOO0

At 1 danuary 693 237 G533 T
Impairment {Note 6) o52 456 552 455
At 31 Decembar 1,245 k] 1,245 G803

The currency prafile of receivables and deposits {(excluding prepayments) iz as
follows:

L dGrowp Company

2013 2012 2013 2M2

RAOO0 RM'GO0 RW'000 Fh'000

Bingqit Malaysia 22 530 17,166 22,5630 17,166
USs Dollar 74,268 © 75,333 74,268 75,333
Auvstratian Dollar 14,858 9.008 14,824 5,635
Euro a5 et a5 B84
indlan Rupee 1,414 1,547 1,414 1.547
MNew Zealand Dollar g2 g4 g2 B4
Others 8,861 2717 8,881 2717
122,079 106,531 122,044 108,158

— =

53



18

20

Company Mo,
7341861 | K

AIRASIA X BERHAD

(Incorporated in Malaysia)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 31 DECEMBER 2013 (CONTINUED)

‘RECEIVABLES AND PREPAYMENTS (CONTINUED)

The other classes within trade and other recalvables do not cortain impaired assets.

The maximum exposura to credit risk at the reporting date is the carrying value of each class of
receivablas mentioned abave. The Group and Company de not hald any collateral as security.

Deposits of the Group and Company at the balance sheet date ars with a qumber of externai
partles for which thare is no expectation of default.

Other recefvables include refunds of value-added tax receivable from the authoritias in various
colintties in which the Group operates,

Frepaymants include advances for purchases of fusl and lease of ajreraft.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s and Company's trade and other receivables approximats
thelr fair values,

AMOUNTS DUE FROMATC) RELATED PARTIES, AN ASSOCIATE AND SUBSIDIARIES

The amounts dus from/(ta) related partles are in respect of trading transactions. The normal credit
terms of the Group and Company range from 15 to 80 days (2012: 15 to 30 days).

e Group _ Company
20158 2012 2013 2M2
RIA000 RKFOG0 EL RN RR'DOO
Amounts due from related partios 16,387 16,738 16,325 15,705
Amaount due from an assoclate 1,353 - 1,353 .
17,740 16,738 17.678 15,708
Amounts due to related partios {1.813) (5,523) {1,918 {5,928)
Amourts dus to subsidiaries . {1,887 {1,651]
{1,818 (5,523) (3,B03) {7,580

The currency profile of amounts due from

reflated paries and assoclate 1s as follows:

Ringgit Malaysla 30,718 22,359 30,718 22,368
Australian Dollar {14,862 {B,6485) {14,954} {6,679
US Dollar 1,529 25 1.525 25
Others 385 - 385 -

17,740 15,738 17,678 15,705

Amounts due from related parties that are neither past due nor impaired amounted to
RIM17, 708,600 and AM17,678,000 {2012; BKM11,175.000 and RK11,140,000) for the Group and
Company raspactively.

a4
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — 31 DECEMBER 2013 (CONTINUED)

AMOUNTE DUE FROMATO) RELATED PARTIES, AN ASSOCIATE AND SUBSIDIARIES

(CONTINUED)

The ageing analysls of amounts due from related parties that are past due but not impaired is as

follows:
Group Company
2013 2012 2013 2012
RALPOO0 RAM'O00 RAOO0 Rk'D00
Less than 30 days 31 3,712 - 3712
Betweasn 61 and 90 days - g5 85
Betweesn 81 and 120 days - 52 52
Between 121 and 180 days - 708 TO8
31 4 HhEs 4,565

The maximum expaosure to credit risk as at the balance sheet date is the carrying valus of the
amounts due itorm related partles mentioned above. The Group and Gumpany do not hold any

collateral as security.

Tha Group and Company have not made any impairment on these balences as management is of

the view that these amounts are recoverabie as there is no history of default.

The carrying amounts of the Group's and Company's amounts dus from rolated parties

approximate their fair values.

The currency profile of amounts dus to related parlies and subsidiariss is as foliows:

Grolp L Comparny -

2HA3 2012 2013 2012

“BWM'O0G RprOo0 B'0on RSO0

Ringgit Malaysia g2 4,667 gz 4,667
Australian Dollar 14 - 1,348 599
LS Dollar 1,820 1,262 1,820 1,282
Mew Zealand Dollar - - E53 52
1,818 5,828 3,803 F.630

55
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — 31 DECEMBER 2013 (CONTINUED}

DEFOSITS, CASH AMND BANK BALAMCES

For the purposas of the statements of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents include the followlng:

- Group Company

2013 2012 2013 2m2

R O00 BAO00 RLOGO RR100D

Cash and bank balances 212,089 113,653 211,880 112,577

Deposits with icensed banks 50,887 60398 50.BE7 60,358

262,976 173,651 2682 7¥T 172,875

Deposlts pledged as securities (50,887 - {50,887 -

Cash and cash eguivalents 2120339 173,851 211,880 172,975
The currency profile of deposits, cash and bank balances is as follows:

Group Corrpany

2013 2012 2013 22

RrT000 RLO00 ELURE R BERIOO0

Ringgit Malaysia 107,646 51,009 107,648 51,090

U Daollar 73,403 43,247 73,403 43,247

Australian Dollar GB,898 62,758 85,303 52,128

Talwan Dollar a1 1,284 691 1,204

Pound Steiling 775 722 i) 7oz

Chinese Renminbi 2ep 3656 222 355

Japanese Yen BE15 8,042 8,615 8,049

Korean Weon 1172 2,675 1,172 2,675

MNew Zealand Dollar 248 1,071 240 723

Eura 886 6G62 826 GE2

Others 2524 2,021 2524 2,021

173,951 23277 172,975

282 878

The Group and Company's weighted average effactive Interest rate of depaosits at the balance

sheet date is 2.75% (2012 4.6%) par annum,
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 31 DECEMBER 2013 (CONTINUED}

TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

Trade payables

Rher payables and accruals

] Group Company
2013 2nie 2013 2012
RK'GO0 RAFOO0 RM'GO0 RM'000
203 297 170,164 503,297 169,048
143,481 83,840 142,783 82 361
348,778 254,004 346,080 252,307

———

Other payables and accruals include operational expenses payable to airport authorities and

passenger sarvice charges.

Tha credit term of trade payables grantad to the Group and Company is 30 days (2012: 20 days).

The currency profile of trade and other payables is a3 follows:

Ringgit Malaysia
LIS Dollar
Australian Dollar
Eurp

Taiwan Dollar
Paund Stetling
Japanesa Yen
Korsan Wanh
Chinase Henmihi
Mew Fealand Doflar
Others

aroup Comparny

2013 2012 2013 2012
RM'GOO AM'000 Ri'000 RO
148,751 45,513 148,751 g 513
139,824 68,455 139,924 GE 496
22,830 47,080 202252 45 6876
7.850 7,335 7.BE0 7,335
2,481 4,842 2461 4,982
537 735 537 7350
6,347 14,719 6,347 14715
2,242 4,875 2242 4. 875
10,889 4,624 10,889 4,624
51 286 B 3
4,995 2,348 4,805 2349
248,778 254,004 345,080 252,307
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 31 DECEMBER 2013 {CONTINUED)

BORROWINGS

Current:

Revolving credit {unsecured)

Term |vans {setured)

Time loan (secured)

Commedity Murabahah Tarm
Financing (unsacursd)

Hirz purchase [unsacured)

Hon-current:

Bevofving credit {unsacurad)
Term loans (secursd)

Hirz purchagse {unsesurad)

Total borrowings

Waighted average rate
of finance (par annum)

213
Ye

3.58
4.68

2,80

201

ol
g

523
4.45
477

8.7b

Group and Compary

2013 2012
HM'DOD EM'000
281,185 391,705
184,674 100,027

- 48,000

- 21,313

21 -
445,880 521,045
178,688 131,875
1,370,628 738,336
. 51 -
1,580,373 871,211
1,806,253 1,382,256

Total barrowlngs as at 31 December 2013 consist of the following banking faciities:

Fixed rate horrowings
Flaating rate arrowings

The Group’s and Company's borrowings are repayable as follows:

Mot later than 1 year

Later than 1 year and not [ater than 5 years

Later than & years

The currency proflls of borrowings is as follows:

Hingglt Malaysia
US Dollar

Group and Company

2013 2012
HRK'DOG RM'000
1,534,835 1,087,358
461,418 304,897
1,996,253 1,392,256
445 280 D21.045
B95,E80 531 082
650,693 33b,225
1,986,253 1,382 256
40,082 309,308 -

1,856,171 1,082,947
1,996,253 1,302,256
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — 31 DECEMBER 2013 (CONTINUED)

BORROWINGS (CONTINUED)

The carrying amounts and fair values of the fixed rate non-current borrowings are as follows:

Group and Company

Carrying amount Fair value

2013 2012 2013 2012

BAM'O00 RM'000 RM'000 RM'O00

Term loans 1,358,298 839,363 1,320,583 731,042
Hire purchase 66 - 70 -

1,358,364 839,363 1,320,653 ° 731,042

The fair values of borrowings classified as current liabilities, equal their carrying amounts, as the
impact of discounting is not significant. The fair values of the non-current borrowings are based on
cash flows discounted using borrowing rates that are reflective of the Group and Company’s credit
risk at the balance sheet date, at 2.80% to 4.89% (2012: 4.45%) per annum. The fair values of
non-current borrowings are within level 3 of the fair value hierarchy.

Revolving credit iacilities

The revolving credit facility of RM400,871,000 as at 31 December 2013 (2012: RM243,584,000) is
to finance pre-delivery payments (“PDPs”) in respect of the Group’s and Company’s firm order of
20 Airbus A330-300 aircraft, with an option to acquire an additional 10 Airbus A330-300 aircraft.
The facility becomes repayable upon delivery of the relevant aircraft and carries interest ranging
from 3.2% to 3.25% {2012: 3%) per annum above the bank's USD cost of funds,

The revolving credit facility of RM40,000,000 as at 31 December 2013 (2012: RM239,996,000) is
to finance the Group’s and Company’s corporate working capital requirements. The tenure of
revolving credit facility of RM40,000 (2012: RM40,000,000} is up to 5 years. This facility carries an
Interest at cost of funds plus 3% {2012: 3%) per annum. Revolving credit facilities of
RM100,000,000 and BM99,996,000 at the end of the previous financial year matured in June 2013
and October 2013 respectively. These facilities carried interest at cots of funds plus 3.25% and
cost of funds plus 1.5% per annum respectively.

Termm loans

The term loans are for the purchase of new Airbus A330-300 aircraft. The repayment of the term
loans is on a quarterly basis over 10 to 12 years, with equal principal instaiments, at fixed interest
rates of between 2.82% and 7.03% (2012: 2.82% and 5. 45%) per annum. The term loans are
secured by the following:

{(a) Assignment of rights under contract with Airbus over each aircraft;
{(b) Assignment of insurance of each aircraft; and

{c) Assignment of airframe and engine warranties of each aircraft.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — 31 DECEMBER 2013 (CONTINUED)

BORROWINGS (CONTINUED)

Time loan

The time loan was utilised to finance the Group’s and Company’s security deposits for aircraft
operating leases and general corporate working capital requirements. This facility matured on 29
September 2013 and carried an interest rate at cost of funds plus 1.50% (2012: 1.50%) per
annum.

Commodity Murabahah Term Financing

This was to re-finance the outstanding balance of up to USD18.75 million (or approximately up to
RM60 million) on an existing USD25 million {or approximately RM80 million) syndicated facility
from two lenders {syndicated loan). This facility matured on 19 September 2013 and carried a
profit rate at cost of funds plus 3.25% per annum.

SHARE CAPITAL
Group and Company
2013 2012
RM'000 RM'000
Authotised:
Ordinary shares of RM1 each: _
At beginning of financial year 270,000 270,000
Sub-division of shares (270,000) -
At end of financial year - 270,000
Ordinary shares of RMO0.15 each:
At beginning of financial year - .
Sub-division of shares 270,000 -
Increased during the financial year 230,000 -
At end of financial year 500,000 -
Redeemabie Convertible Preference Shares of RM1 each (“RCPS™):
At beginning of financial year 50,000 50,000
Cancellation of RCPS {50,000} .
At end of financial year ' - 50,000

Total authorised 500,000 320,000
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS -

SHARE CAPITAL (CONTINUED)

2013 2012
RM'000 RM'000
Issued and fully paid up:
Ordinary shares of RM1 each:
At beginning of financial year 224,000 224,000
Conversion of RCPS 42,667 -
Sub-division of shares {266,667) -
At end of financial year - 224,000
Ordinary shares of RM0.15 each:
At beginning of financial year - -
Sub-division of shares 266,667 -
Issuance of shares during the financial year 88,889 -
At end of financial year 355,556 -
Redeamable Converttible Preference Shares
of RM1 each ("RCPS"): .
At beginning of financial year 42,667 42 667
Conversion of RCPS (42,667) -
At end of financial year - 42,667
Total issued and fully paid up 355,556 266,667
The terms of the RCPS are as follows:
{(a) The RCPS are convertible in whole at the holder’s option at any time into ordinary shares

31 DECEMBER 2013 (CONTINUED)

Group and Company

of RM1 each in the capital of the Company in the proportion of one ordinary share for
every one RCPS held. Notwithstanding this, the RCPS holder shall convert all of its RCPS
into ordinary shares of RM1 each in the capital of the Company upon receipt of written
notice from the Company as part of the Company’s bona fide scheme for the listing of the
Company’s shares on any recognised stock exchange.

(b) The RCPS has the same entitlement to dividend and all other forms of distributions out of
income of the Company at the same rate as that of ordinary shares.

{c) The RCPS can be redesmed in part or in whole at the Company’s option at any time, but
only with prior written approval of the holder and redemption can only be effected at par

value.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 31 DECEMBER 2013 (CONTINUED)

SHARE CAPITAL (CONTINUED)

On 10 May 2013, all the outstanding 42,666,667 Redeemable Convertible Preference Shares
("RCP3") of RM1 each in the Company was converted on a one-to-one basis, into 42,666,687 new
ordinary shares of RM1 each in the Company, without consideration. On 13 May 2013, the
Company cancelled its authorised share capital for RCPS of RM1 each, amounting to
RM50,000,000.

During the financial year, the Company implemented the following transactions as part of an initial
public offering ("IPO") exercise:

(iv) On 13 May 2013, the Company subdivided all of its existing 266,666,668 ordinary shares
of RM1 each into 1,777,777,787 ordinary shares of RMO0.15 each, by way of every three
(3) ordinary shares of RM1 each into twenty (20) ordinary shares of RM0.15 each in the
Company. On that same date, the Company increased its authorised share capital from
RM270,000,000 to RM500,000,000, comprising 3,333,333,333 shares of RM0.15 each by
the creation of 1,533,333,333 ordinary shares of RM0.15 each;

{v) On 10 June 2013, the Company issued a Prospectus in conjunction with an IPO of up to
790,123,500 ordinary shares of RM0.15 each in the Company, comprising an offer for sale
of up to 197,530,900 existing ordinary shares of RM0.15 each and a public issue of
582,592,600 new ordinary shares of RM0.15 each to retail and institutional investors at a
retail price of RM1.25 per share;

(vi) In conjunction with the IPO, the Company implemented an Employse Share Option
Scheme ("ES0S") to recognise the contribution of the Eligible Directors and Eligible
Employees of up to 9,550,000 ESOS new ordinary shares of RM0.15 each, to be issued
and awarded upon the terms and conditions of the By-Laws of the ESOS,

The entire enlarged issued and paid up ordinary share capital of RM355,555,558 comprising
2,370,370,387 ordinary shares of RM0.15 each were listed and quoted on the Official List of the
Main Market of Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad on 10 July 2013,

The issued and paid-up share capital of the Company currently stands at RM355,555,558
comprising 2,370,370,387 ordinary shares of RM0.15 each. The new ordinary shares issued
during the financial year ranked pari passu in all respects with the existing ordinary shares of the
Company.

EMPLOYEES' SHARE OPTION SCHEME ("ES0S")

[n sonjunction with the IPO, the Company had implemented an ESOS which entalls the issuance
of up to ten percent (10%) of the issued and paid-up share capital of the Company at any one time
pursuant to the exercise of options to be granted under the ESOS, to full-time eligible employees
and eligible Directors of the Group ("ESOS Options”). The tenure of the ESOS shall be five (5)
years with an option to extend for a further five (5) years, subject to a maximum duration of ten
{10) years. The ESOS is governed by the By-Laws which were approved by the shareholders on
12 October 2012,

On 1 July 2013, the Company granted 9,550,000 ESOS Options to eligible employees of the
Company at the exercise price of RM1.25 per option (“Initial Grant”). The vesting of the ESOS
Options under the Initial Grant shall be subject to the terms and conditions of the By-Laws.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — 31 DECEMBER 2013 (CONTINUED)

SHARE CAPITAL (CONTINUED)
EMPLOYEES' SHARE OPTION SCHEME (“ESOS”) (CONTINUED)
The main features of the ESOS are as follows:

(a) The maximum number of ordinary shares, which may be allotted pursuant to the exercise
of options under the Scheme, shall not exceed ten per cent (10.0%) of the issued and
paid-up share capital of the Company at any point in time during the duration of the
Scheme,

{b) The ESOS Committee has been appointed and duly authorised by the Board (and
governed by the By-Laws) may, at its absolute discretion, offer such number of ESOS
Options to the Eligible Directors and Eligible Employees during the subsistence of the
ESOS, provided that such number of new Shares issued under the ESOS Options granted
shall not exceed the maximum number permitted under the Listing Requirements, the By-
Laws and any laws, regulations and guidelines issued by other relevant authorities.

(c} An Eligible Director or Eligible Employee who accepts an offer of ESOS Option must
return, on or before the expiry date, the duly completed presecribed acceptance form
accompanied by the payment of the sum of RM1.00 as a consideration for acceptance of
that offer. If that offer is not accepted in such manner, the offer shall, upon the expiry date,
automatically lapse and be null and void.

(d) The subscription price, in respect of options granted prior to the date of listing in Bursa
Malaysia, shall be RM1.25 per share.

(e} The options granted are exercisable one year beginning from the date of grant.

The shares to be allotted and issued upon any valid exercise of options will, upon such allotment
and issuance, rank pari passu in all respects with the existing and issued shares except that such
shares so issued will not be entitled to any dividends, rights, allotments and/or any other
distributions which may be declared, made or paid to shareholders prior to the date of allotment of
such shares. The options shall not carry any right to vote at a general meeting of the Company.

The Company granted 9,550,000 options at an exercise price of RM1.25 per share under the
ESOS scheme on 1 July 2013, which will expire in 5 years,

At 31 December 2013, options to subscribe for 8,550,000 (2012: Nil) ordinary shares of RM0.15
each at the exercise price of RM1.25 per share remain unexercised. These options granted do not
confer any right to participate in any share issue of any other company.

Set out below are details of options over the ordinary shares of the Company granted under the
ESOS:

Expiry Exercise At At
Grant date date price  1.1.2013 Granted Exercised 31.12.2013
RM/share ‘000 ‘000 ‘000 ‘000

1 July 2013 11 October 2017 1.25 - 9,550 - 9,650

There is no option vested or exercised as at the balance shest date.

63



25

26

Company No.

734161 | K

AIRASIA X BERHAD

(Incorporated in Malaysia)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 31 DECEMBER 2013 (CONTINUED)

RETAINED EARNINGS

As at 31 December 2013, the Company does not have any Section 108 tax credits and has
therefore automatically moved to the single-tier tax system, which came into effect from the year of
assessment 2008, under which companies are not required to have tax credits under Section 108
of the Income Tax Act, 1967 for dividend payment purposes. Dividends paid under this system are
tax exempt in the hands of shareholders,

COMMITMENTS

(@)

(b)

Capital commitments not provided for in the financial statements are as foliows:

Group and Company

2013 2012
RM'000 RM’000
Aircraft purchase — approved and
contracted for:
~ Not later than 1 year 3,798,706 2,123,231
- Later than 1 year and not later than 3 years 12,155,860 7,077,438
- Later than 3 years and not later than 5 years 11,396,119 3,638,718
- Later than 5 years 12,168,353 8,504,563

39,519,038 21,243,950

Inciuded in the amount of capital commitments above as at 31 December 2013 is the
purchase of 40 Airbus A330 aircraft and 10 Airbus A350 aircraft (2012: 18 Airbus A330
atrcraft and 10 Airbus A350 aircraft) over the next 12 years, at a list price of approximately
USD12 billion (RM39.5 billion) {2012: USDB.9 billion (RM21.2 billion)), less a negotiated
discount.

Non-cancellable operating leases

The future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases in respect of
aircraft are as follows:

Group and Company

2013 2012

RM'000 RM'O00

Not later than 1 year 325,015 193,642
Later than 1 year and not later than 3 years 578,008 551,810
Later than 3 year and not later than 5 years 541,560 478,365
Later than 5 years 1,139,078 1,242,194

2,583,661 2,464,111
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — 31 DECEMBER 2013 (CONTINUED)

SIGNIFICANT RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

In addition to related party disclosures mentioned elsewhere in the financial statements, set out
below are other significant related party disclosures,

Name of Companies Relationship

AirAsia X Services Pty Lid Subsidiary

AirAsia X NZ Lid Subsidiary

That AirAsia X Co Litd (*TAAX") Associate

AirAsia Berhad ("AAB") Sharsholder of the Company for which there is no

control, significant influence or joint venture, and
common Directors and shareholders)

Caterhamjet Globai Lid (“CJG™) Common Directors and shareholders
Associates of AirAsia Berhad

- Thai AirAsia Co. Lid (“TAAY) Common Directors and shareholders
- PT Indonesia AirAsia {(“IAA") Common Directors and shareholders
- AirAsia Japan Co. Ltd ("JAA") * Common Directors and shareholders
- AlrAsia Inc (“PAA™) Common Directors and shareholders

Joint ventures of AirAsja Berhad
- Asian Aviation Gentre of Excelience Sdn Bhd Common Directors and shareholders

-~ AAE Travel Pte Ltd ("AAE") Common Directors and shareholders
Tune Insurance Malaysia Berhad Common Directors and shareholders
Tune Box Sdn Bhd Common Directors and shareholders
Asian Contact Centres Sdn Bhd Common Director and shareholders

*  JAA ceased as a related party of the Company/Group as at 28 June 2013.

All related party transactions were carried out on agreed terms and conditions between the parties.
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27 SIGNIFICANT RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)

Group

2013
‘ RM’000
(a) Transactions with_related parties

AirAsia X NZ Ltd
- Management fees paid/payable -

| AirAsia X Services Pty Lid
‘f - Management fees paid/payable -

AirAsia Berhad
- Operational services charged
by AAB 6,998
- Brand license fee charged by AAB 8,530
- Provision of carried passenger
services which were procured
by AAB {8,827)

PT Indonesia AirAsia
- Operational services charged
to |1AA (347)

Thai AirAsia Co. Ltd
- Operational services charged
to TAA (423)

AirAsia Japan Co. Lid
- Operational services
charged to JAA (590)

Asian Aviation Centre of
Excellence Sdn Bhd
- Net expense on training
services 6,680

AAE Travel Pte Ltd
s - Marketing services
charged by AAE 101

Tune Box Sdn Bhd
- In-flight entertainment system
and software expense 1,653

Asian Contact Centres Sdn Bhd

- Telecommunication and
operational expenses 9,167

66

2012
RM'000

5,461

7,749

(8,827)

(364)

(132)

{3186)

2,778

2,336

11,189

2013

RM'000

2,972

6,998

8,530

(8,827)

(423)

(590)

6,680

101

1,653

9,167

Company
2012
RM’000

2,213

2,622
5,461

7,749

(8,827)

(132)

(318)

2,778

2,336

11,189
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — 31 DECEMBER 2013 (CONTINUED)

SIGNIFICANT RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)

Group Company
2013 2012 2013 2012
RM'000 RM000 RM'000 RM'000
{a) Transactions with '
related parties (continued)
Tune Insurance Malaysia
Berhad (“TIMB")
- commission
received/receivable on travel
insurance for passengers {1,833) {623) {1,833) {623)
- premium collected on behalf '
of TIMB on travel insurance
for passengers 7,333 2,491 7,333 2,491
Caterhamijet Global Ltd
- Charter air travel services
charged by CJG 5,083 - 5,083 -
Year end balances with
related parties
(b) Receivables :
AAE Travel Pte Ltd - 39 - 39
Thai AirAsia Co. Ltd ' - 14 - 14
PT Indenesia AirAsia - - 44 - 11
AirAsia Japan Co. Ltd - 157 - 157
AirAsia Inc - 10 - 10
Thai AirAsia X Co. Ltd 1,353 - 1,353 -
AirAsia Berhad 16,161 15,474 16,161 15,474
Others 226 - 164 -
17,740 15,738 17,678 15,705
(c) Payables
Asian Aviation Centre
of Excellence Sdn Bhd 1,746 1,317 1,746 1,317
Asian Contact Centres Sdn Bhd .- 2,557 - 2,657
PT Indonesia AirAsia 14 - 14 -
AirAsia Inc 4 - 4 -
Tune Box Sdn Bhd - 186 - 186
Tune Insurance
Malaysia Berhad - 1,869 - 1,869
Thai AirAsia Co. Ltd 152 - 152 -
AirAsia X Services Pty Ltd - - 1,334 599
AirAsia X NZ Lid - - 553 652
1,916 5,929 3,803 7.580
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 31 DECEMBER 2013 (CONTINUED)

SIGNIFICANT RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)

(d)  Key management personnel comprises head or senior management officers of key operating
divisions within the Group and Company. The key management compensation is disclosed
below.

Group and Company

2013 2012
RM'000 BM'000

Key management compensation:
- basic salaries, bonuses and allowances 7,956 4,810
- defined contribution plan 886 545
8,842 5,355

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT POLICIES

The Group’s and Company’s financial risk management policies seek to ensure that adequate
financial resources are available for the development of the Group’s and Company’s businesses
whilst managing their market risk (including fuel price risk, interest rate risk and foreign currency
exchange risk), credit risk and liquidity and cash flow risk. The Group and Company operate within
defined guidelines that are approved and reviewed periodically by the Board of Directors to
minimise the effects of such volatility on their financial performance.

The Board of Directors is responsible for setting the objectives and underlying principles of
financial risk management for the Group and the Company. The management team then
establishes detailed policies such as risk identification and measurement, exposure limits and risk
management strategies. Risk management policies and procedures are reviewed regularly to
reflect changes in the market condition, and the Group's and Company’s activities.

The Group and Company also seek to ensure that the financial resources that are available for the
development of the Group’s and Company’s businesses are constantly monitored and managed
vis-a-vis its ongoing exposure to fuel price, interest rate, foreign currency exchange, credit, liquidity
and cash flow risks.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT PQOLICIES (CONTINUED)
The poiicies in respect of the major areas of treasury activities are as follows:
(@) Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will
fluctuate because of changes in market prices such as foreign currency sxchange rates,
Jet fuel prices and interest rates. The objective of market risk management is to manage

and control market risk exposure within acceptable parameters while optimising the return
on risk. :

)] Fuel price risk

The Group and Company are exposed to jet fuel price risk arising from the
fluctuations in the prices of jet fuel. The Group and Company rely on a related
party for certain treasury activities, including hedging of fuel price, which is
contracted and managed by the related party. Any gain or loss arising from fuel
hedging is recognised when the risk transfers to the Group and Company upon
consumption of the fuel, within “Aircraft fuel expenses” in Operating Expenses.

During the financial year ended 31 December 2013, the Group and Company
entered into Singapore Jet Kerosene fixed swap. There was 187,778 barrels

(2012: Nil} outstanding of Singapore Jet Kerosene contract as at 31 December
2013.

As at 31 December 2013, if USD denominated barrel had been USD5
higher/lower with all other variables held constant, the impact on the post-tax profit
and equity for the year end equity are tabulated below:

2013 ' 2012

+USD5 -UsSD5 +USD5 -USDs5
RM'GOQ RM'000 - RM000 RM’000
Impact on post tax profits 3,084 (3,084) - -

Impact on other
comprehensive income - - -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — 31 DECEMBER 2013 (CONTINUED)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT POLICIES (CONTINUED)

The policies in respect of the major areas of treasury activities are as follows: (continued)

(a) Market risk (continued)

(i)

Interest rate risk

Cash flow interest rate risk is the risk that the future cash flows of a financial
instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. Fair value
interest rate risk is that risk that the fair value of a financial instrument will fluctuate
due to changes in market interest rates,

In view of the substantial borrowings taken to finance the acquisition of aircraft,
the Group's and Company's income and operating cash flows are also influenced
by changes in market interest rates. Interest rate exposure arises from the
Group’s and Company’s floating rate borrowings and deposits. Surplus funds are
placed with reputable financial institutions at the most favourable interest rate.

The Group manages its cash flow interest rate risk by entering into a cross
currency interest rate swap contracts that effectively converts its existing long-
term floating rate debt facilities into fixed rate debts. This hedging strategy
ensures that the Group is paying a fixed interest expense on its borrowings and
that the performance of the Group is not significantly impacted by the fluctuation in
interest rates.

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined based on the exposure to
interest rates for both derivatives and non-derivative instruments at the balance
sheet date and the stipulated change taking place at the beginning of the financia
year and held constant throughout the reporting period in the case of instruments
that have floating rates.

At 31 December 2013, if interest rate on USD denominated borrowings had been
80 basis points, the impact on the post-tax profit for the financial year would have
been RM4.39 million {2012: RM4.36 million) higher/lower with all other variables
held constant.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ~ 31 DECEMBER 2013 (CONTINUED)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT POLICIES (CONTINUED)

The policies in respect of the major areas of treasury activities are as follows: (continued)

{a) Market risk {continued)

(i)

Foreign currency risk

Apart from Ringgit Malaysia (“RM”), the Group and Company transact business in
various foreign currencies including United States Dollar (“USD"), Australian Dollar
{("AUD"}, EURO, Indian Rupee (“INR"}, Chinese Renminbi (‘RMB”} and Japanese
Yen (*JPY"). In addition, the Group and Company have significant borrowings in
USD, mainly to finance the purchase of aircraft and pre-delivery payments in
respect of the Group’s and Company’s firm order of 40 Airbus A330-300 aircraft
(Note 23). Therefore, the Group and Company are exposed to currency exchange
risk. These exposures are managed, to the extent possible, by natural hedges that
arise when payments for foreign currency payables are matched against
recelvables denominated in the same foreign currency, or whenever possible by
intragroup arrangements and settlements.

As at 31 December 2013, if RM had weakened/strengthened by 5% against the
USD with all other variables held constant, post-tax profit for the financial year
would have been RM40 million (2012: RM43.2 million) lower/higher, mainly as a
result of foreign exchange losses/gains on translation of USD denominated
receivables and bomrowings (term loan and finance lease). Similarly, the impact on
other comprehensive income would have been RM3.3 million (2012: nil)
higher/lower due to the cash flow hedging in USD. The exposure to other foreign
currency risk of the Group is not material and hence, sensitivity analysis is not
presented.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — 31 DECEMBER 2013 (CONTINUED)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(b)

(©)

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Group and Company if a customer or a counter
party to a financial instrument fails to meet its contractual obligations and arises principally
from the Group’s and Company’s receivables from customers, cash and cash equivalents
and financial assets (derivative instruments).

The Group’s and Company’s exposure to credit risk or the risk of counterparties defaulting
arises mainly from various deposits and bank balances, and receivables. As the Group
and Company do not hold collateral, the maximum exposure to credit risk is represented
by the total carrying amounts of these financial assets in the balance sheet. Credit risk, or

‘the risk of counterparties defaulting, is controlled by the application of credit approvals,

limits and monitoring procedures.

Credit risk relating to receivables is minimised by regular monitoring and, in addition, credit
risk is controlled as the majority of the Group’s and Company’s deposits and bank
balances are placed with major financial institutions and reputable parties. The Directors
are of the view that the possibility of non-performance by the majority of these financial
institutions is remote on the basis of their financial strength and support of their respective
governments.

The Group and Company generally have no concentration of credit risk arising from trade
receivables, other than as disclosed in Note 19 to the financial statements.

Liquidity and cash flow risk

The Group’s and Company’s policy on liquidity risk management is to maintain sufficient
cash and cash equivalents and to have available funding through adequate amounts of
committed credit facilities and credit lines for working capital requirements.

Whilst the Group’s and Company’s current liabilities exceeded their current assets by
RM762,703,000 and RM764,439,000 respectively as at 31 December 2013, the Directors
are of the view that no material uncertainty relating to these conditions exists that may cast
significant doubt on the Group’s or Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. The
Directors believe that the Group and Company are able to realise their assets and
discharge their liabilities in the normal course of business and that the financial position wilf
be improved through future operating profits and cash flows. In January 2014, the Group
and Company also secured a term loan amounting to USD72.5 million (approximately
RM237.7 million) to finance the acquisition of an Airbus A330-300 which was delivered on
9 January 2014 and are currently in negotiations with lenders for credit facilities to finance
their commitments for the acquisition of aircraft in 2014, The Directors are of the view that
the Group and Company are able to secure these credit facilities to finance the delivery of
the relevant aircraft according to the aircraft delivery schedule given that the Group and
Company are currently finalising the terms and conditions of these credit facilities.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 31 DECEMBER 2013 (CONTINUED)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT POLICIES {CONTINUED)
{c) Liguidity and cash flow risk (continued)
The table below analyses the Group’s financial liabilities into relevant maturity groupings

based on the remaining period at the balance sheet date to the contractual maturity date.
The amounts disclosed in the table below are the contractual undiscounted cash flows.

Group
At 31 December 2013

Under 1 vear 1-2 years 2-5vears Over5vyears

RM000 RM'000 RM000 RM'000

Term loans 248,771 468,421 423,324 714,822
Revolving credit 307,437 152,336 - -
Hire purchase 19 37 37 -

Trade and other payables 346,778 - - .
Amounts due to related
parties 1,916 - - -

904,021 620,794 423,361 714,822

At 31 December 2012

Under 1 year 1-2 years 2-5years Over5 years

RM'000 RM"000 RM000 RM000

Term loans 135,561 257,958 240,561 368,824

Time loan 49,146 - - -

Revolving credit 376,281 96,757 42,599 -
Commodity Murabahah

Term Financing 22,010 - - -

Trade and other payables 254,004 - - -
Amounts due to related
parties 5,929 - - .

842,931 354,715 283,160 368,824
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(e) Liquidity and cash flow risk {continued)

Company
At 31 December 2013

Under 1 year 1-2 years 2-5 years QOverb years

RM'000Q RM000 RM'000 RM'000

Term loans 248,771 468,421 423,324 714,822
Revolving credit 307,437 152,336 - -

Hire purchase 19 37 37 -
Trade and other payables 346,080 -
Amounts due to related

parties and subsidiaries 3,803 - - -

906,110 620,794 423,361 714,822

At 31 December 2012

Under 1 year 1-2 years 2-5years Over b years

RM000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000

Term loans 135,561 257,958 240,561 368,824

Time loan 49,146 - - -

Revolving credit . 376,281 96,757 42 599 -
Commodity Murabahah

Term Financing 22,010 - - -

Trade and other payables 252,307 - - -
Amounts due to related
parties and subsidiaries 7,580 - - -

842,885 354,715 283,160 368,824
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS —~ 31 DECEMBER 2013 (CONTINUED)

FINANGIAL RISK MANAGEMENT POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(d)

Capital risk management

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern and to maintain an optimal capital structure so as to provide
returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders.

In order to optimise the capital structure, or the capital allocation amongst the Group’s
various businesses, the Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid to sharsholders,
return capital to shareholders, issue new shares, take on nsw debts or sell assets to
reduce debt. The Group’s overall strategy remains unchanged from the previous financial
year.

The Group monitors capital utilisation on the basis of the gearing ratio. This ratio is
calculated as total debts divided by total shareholders’ equity. Total debts are calculated
as total borrowings (including “short term and long term borrowings” as shown in the
balance sheets).

The gearing ratio as at the balance sheet date is as follows:

Group Company

2013 202 2013 2012

RM*000 RM'000 RM’000 RM'000

Total borrowings (a) 1,996,253 1,392,256 1,996,253 1,392,256
Total equity attributable to equity

holders of the Company (b) 1,238,155 580,730 1,234,921 579,296

Gearing ratio (a)/(b) 1.6 24 1.6 2.4

The Group and the Company are in compliance with all externally imposed capital
reqguirements.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT POLICIES (CONTINUED)

{e)

Fair value measurement

The carrying amounts of cash and cash equivalents, trade and other current assets, and
trade and other current liabilities approximate their respective fair values due to the
relatively short-term maturity of these financial instruments. The fair values of other
classes of financial assets and liabilities are disclosed in the respective notes to financial
statements.

Determination of fair value and fair value hierarchy

The Group’s financial instruments are measured in the balance sheet at fair value,
Disclosure of fair value measurements are by level of the following fair value measurement
hierarchy:

*  Quoted prices {unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities (level 1,

* Inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that are observable for the
asset or liability, either directly (that is, as prices) or indirectly {that is, derived from
prices) (level 2);

¢« Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (ihat is,
unobservable inpuis) (level 3).

The following table presents the Group and Company’s assets and liabilities thai are
measured at fair value at 31 December 2013, 31 December 2012.

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000

Group and Company

31 December 2013

Assets

Financial assets at fair

value through profit or loss
- Trading derivatives - 5,541 - 5,541
Derivatives used for hedging - 60,388 - 60,388
- 65,929 - 65,929

31 December 2012

Assets
Financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss
- Trading derivatives - - - .
Derivatives used for hedging - - - -
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT POLICIES {CONTINUED)

(e)

- Fair value measurement {continued)

Financial instruments are classified as Level 1 if their value is observable in an active
market. Such instruments are valued by reference to unadjusted quoted prices for identical
assets or liabilities in active markets where the quoted prices is readily available, and the
price represents actual and regularly occurring market transactions. An active market is
one in which transactions occur with sufficient volume and frequency to provide pricing
information on an on-going basis. These would include actively traded listed squities and
actively exchange-traded derivatives.

Where fair value is determined using unquoted market prices in less active markets or
quoted prices for similar assets and liabilities, such instruments are generally classified as
Level 2. In cases where quoted prices are generally not available, the Group then
determines fair value based upon valuation techniques that use as inputs, market
parameters including but not limited to yield curves, volatilities and foreign exchange rates.
The majority of valuation technigues employ only observable market data and so reliability
of the fair value measurement is high. These would include certain bonds, government
bonds, corporate debt securities, repurchase and reverse purchase agreements, loans,
credit derivatives, certain issued notes and the Group’s over the counter ("OTC™
derivatives. The Group's level 2 hedging derivatives comprise the CCIRS and fuel swap
contracts. Specific valuation technique used to value financial instruments includes:

» The fair value of CCIRS contracts is determined using forward interest rates
extracted from observable yield curves and forward exchange rates at the balance
sheet date, with the resulting value discounted back to present value;

*  The fair value of fuel swap contracts is determined using forward fuel price at the
balance sheet date, with the resulting value discounted back to present value.

Financial instruments are classified as Level 3 if their valuation incorporates significant
inputs that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs). Such inputs
are generally determined based on observable inputs of a similar nature, historical
observations on the level of the input or other analytical techniques.
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

{a) Financial instruments by category

Group

31 December 2013

Assets as per balance shest
Trade and other receivables
excluding prepayments
Other deposits
Amount due from related parties
Deposits, cash and bank balances
Derivative financial
instruments

Total

Liabilities as per balance sheet
Borrowings

Trade and other payables
Amount due to a related party

Total

82

Assets at
fair value
through Derivatives
Lean and the profit used for

receivables and |oss hedging Total
RM000 RMO00 RM000 RM000
122,079 - 122,079
90,751 - - 90,751
17,740 - - 17,740
262,976 - - 262,976
- 5,541 60,388 65,929
493,548 5,541 60,388 559,475

Other

financial

liabilities at

amortised
cost Total
RM'000 RM'000
- 1,996,253 1,996,253
348,778 346,778
1,916 1,816
2,344,947 2,344,947
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(a) Financial instruments by category (continued)

Group
31 December 2012

Assets as per balance sheet

Trade and other recsivables
excluding prepayments

Other deposits

Amount due from related parties

Deposits, cash and bank balances

Total

Liabilities as per balance shest
Borrowings

Trade and other payables
Amount due to a related party

Total

83

- NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 31 DECEMBER 2013 (CONTINUED)

Loan and
recejvables Total
RM000 RM’0C0
106,531 106,631
33,739 33,739
15,738 15,738
173,951 173,951
329,959 329,959
Other
financial
liabilities at
amortised
cost Total
RM'000 RM'000
1,382,256 1,392,255
254,004 254,004
5,929 5,929
1,652,189 1,652,189
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS —~ 31 DECEMBER 2013 (CONTINUED)

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

(@) Financial instruments by category (continued)
Assets at
fair value
through Derivatives
Loan and the profit used for
Company receivables and loss hedging Total
RM’000 RM'000 BM’000 RM'000
31 December 2013
Assets as per balance sheet
Trade and other receivables :
excluding prepayments 122,044 - - - 122,044
Other deposits 90,751 - - 90,751
Amount due from related parties 17,678 - - ‘17,678
Deposits, cash and bank balances 262,777 - - 282,777
Derivative financial instruments - 5,541 60,388 65,929
Total 493,250 5,541 60,388 559,179
Other
financial
liabilities at
amortised
cost Total
RM'000 RM'000
Liabilities as per halance sheet
Borrowings - 1,996,253 1,996,253
Trade and other payables 346,080 346,080
Amount due to a related party 3,803 3,803
Total 2,346,136 2,346,136
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)
(b)

(©)

Financial instruments by category (continued)

Company

31 December 2012

Assets as per balance sheet

Trade and other receivables excluding prepayments
Cther deposits

Amount due from related parties

Deposits, cash and bank balances

Total

{ iabilities as per balance sheet

Borrowings

Trade and cther payables
Amount due to a related party

Total

Credit quality of financial assets

Loan and
receivables Total
RM000 BM'000
106,159 106,159
33,739 33,739
15,705 15,705
172,975 172,975
328,578 328,578
Other
financial
liabilities at
amortised
cost Total
RM'000 BM000
1,392,256 1,392,256
252,307 252,307
7,580 7,580
1,652,143 1,652,143

The credit quality of financial assets that are neither past due nor impaired can be
assessed by reference to external credit ratings (if available) or to historical information

about counterparty default rates:

Derivative financial assets

AA+to A+
A to BBB-

Group

2013 2012
RMD00 RM'O00
519 -
65,410 -

65,929
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — 31 DECEMBER 2013 (CONTINUED)

SEGMENTAL INFORMATION

Management has determined the operating segments based on reports that are reviewed and
used to make strategic decisions by the Group’s Chief Executive Officer (“CEO”) who is identified
as the chief operating decision maker.

The Group’s CEO considers the business from a geographic perspective. With the termination of
certain routes in the previous financial year, the operating segments have been reassessed and
identified as North Asia, Australia and Middle East and West Asia. During the financial year,
management has also revised the presentation of expense line items in the reports reviewed and
used by the CEO to make strategic decisions. The comparatives for segmental information have
been restated to be consistent with the present reporting structure.

The operating segments derive their revenues primarily from the Group's activities of provision of
long haul air transportation services to these locations. '

Consistent with information provided to the chief operating decision maker, revenue and certain
direct costs {fuel and oil and maintenance, overhaul and user charges) were extracted on actual
earned/incurred basis and disclosed accordingly in the operating segment results for the financial
years ended 31 December 2013 and 31 December 2012 respectively. All other costs are allocated
to the various segments based on “block hours”. Block hours are defined as the time between the
departure of an aircraft and its arrival at its destination, as recorded in the aircraft flight log.
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SEGMENTAL INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

The Group’s operations by geographical segments are as follows:

West Asia
and
2013 North Asia Australia Middle East Total
RM000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000
External revenue
- Scheduled flights 755,508 518,171 132,768 1,406,447
- Refunds (1,052) {351} {(393) (1,796)
754,456 517,820 132,375 1,404,651
- Charter flights 4,681 - 102,320 107,001
- Fuel surcharge 110,503 139,221 4,115 253,839
- Freight and cargo 60,220 29,215 583 90,018
- Ancillary revenue 217,918 217,075 17,501 452,494
- Management fees 178 142 27 347
1,147,956 903,473 256,921 2,308,350
Operating expenses
- Staff costs {111,110) (90,686) {31,805) {(233,601)
- Fuel and oil {551,308) (465,215) (84,693) (1,101,216)
- Maintenance, overhaul and user
charges and other related expenses  {227,885) {166,358) {67,126) (451,369)
- Aircraft operating lease expenses {73,529) (59,761) {53,373) (186,6683)
- Other operating costs {90,448) (92,596) {20,419) (203,461)
~ Other income 11,802 8,648 5,492 25,942
- Share of results of an associate (288) (178) {38) {502)
Gross profit 105,194 37,327 14,959 157,480
EBITDAR 178,723 97,088 68,332 344,143 1
EBITDA 105,194 37,327 14,859 157,480
Depreciation of property,
plant and equipment (61,291) {47,467) (11,800) {120,558)
EBIT 43,903 {10,140) 3,159 36,922
Intersst income 2,142 1,238 231 3,611
Interest expsnse and finance charges (39,821) {31,424) {5,177) (76,422)
Foreign exchange loss ' (90,047) {73,593) {12,531) (176,171)
Loss before tax (83,823) (113,919) {(14,318) (212,060)
Taxation 63,275 51,713 8,805 123,793
Net loss for the financial year (20,548) (62,206) {5,513) {88,267)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 31 DECEMBER 2013 (CONTINUED)

SEGMENTAL INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

The Group’s operations by geographical segments are as follows (continued): .

Woest Asia
and Middle
2012 North Asia Australia East* Total
RM'000 RM'000 RWM 000 RM'QQO
External revenue
- Scheduled flights 611,891 487,950 183,736 1,283,577
- Refunds (377) (178) (1,244) (1,799)
611,514 487,772 182,492 1,281,778
- Charter flights 1,134 - 66,714 67,848
- Fuel surcharge 54,091 82,036 12,099 148,226
- Freight and cargo 47,980 22,985 8,302 79,267
- Ancillary revenue 162,967 163,464 37,503 363,934
- Management fees 172 142 50 364
- Other revenue - - 26,010 26,010
877,858 756,399 333,170 1,967,427
Operating expenses
- Staff costs (79,347) {64,675) (36,476) (180,498)
- Fuel and oil- (421,808) (344,271) (159,215) {925,294)
- Maintenance, overhaul and user
charges and other related expenses (169,826) (124,196) (87,523) (381,545)
- Aircraft operating lease expenses {56,120} {45,087) (51,221) (152,408)
- Other operating costs {63,727} {88,398) (26,473) (178,598)
- Other income 2,577 2,246 2,158 6,981
Gross profit/(loss) 89,607 92,038 (25,580) 156,065
EBITDAR 145,727 137,105 25,641 308,473 1
EBITDA 89,607 92,038 (25,580) 156,065
Depreciation of property,
plant and equipment (60,264) (40,378) {16,455)
EBIT 39,343 51,660 (42,035) 48,968
Interest income 887 744 245 1,876
Interest expense and finance charges (27,376) {22,349) (8,713) {56,438)
Foreign exchange gain 20,034 16,183 7,382 43,599
Profit/(loss) before tax 32,888 46,238 {41,121) 38,005
Taxation (1,910) (1,543) (702) {4,155)
Net loss for the financial year 30,978 44,695 (41,823) 33,850

* Includes Europe, India and New Zealand which were terminated in 2012. This presentation is
consistent with the financial information presented and regularly reviewed by the Group CEO.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ~ 31 DECEMBER 2013 (CONTINUED)

SEGMENTAL INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

Note:

EBITDAR - Earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation, amortisation and restructuring or rent
costs '

EBITDA - Earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation and amortisation

EBIT - Earnings before interest and taxes

All material non-current assets are based in Malaysia at the end of the current and previous
financial year end.

The Group has not disclosed information relating to revenue from external customers which are
atiributed to the country of domicile and which are attributable to all foreign countties in total from
which the Group derives revenue. Due to the nature of activities in the Group, the nacessary
information is not available and the cost to develop it would be excessive.

(LOSS)/EARNINGS PER SHARE

Basic (loss)/earnings per share

Basic (loss)/earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net (loss)/profit for the financial year by
the weighted average number of ordinary/preference shares in issue during the financial year.

Group

2013 2012

Net (loss)/earnings for the financial year (RM’000) (88,267) 33,850
Weighted average number of ordinary/preference shares

in issue ("000) ) 1,308,305 266,667

(Loss)/earnings per share (sen) (6.7) 12.7

Diluted (lossYearnings per share

The diluted (loss)/earnings per share of the Group is similar to the basic (loss)/earnings per share
as the options over unissued ordinary shares granted pursuant to the ESOS at the end of the
financial year have an anti-dilutive effect. The exercise price of the ESOS of RM1.25 per option is
above the average market value of the Company’s shares during the financial year,
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — 31 DECEMBER 2013 (CONTINUED)

DISCLOSURES OF INTERESTS IN OTHER ENTITIES

The Company had set up Merah X entities, special purpose companies (“SPC”") pursuant to aircraft
loans obtained from various financial institutions. In this arrangement, the SPC entered into a
Head Instaiment Sale Agreement with special purpose companies incorporated in the Cayman
Islands, for the purchase of Airbus A330-300 aircrafts. In turn the SPC entered into an instalment
Sale Agreement with the Company for the sale of the Airbus A330-300 aircraft.

The details of the Merah X entitios are as follows:

Country of

Name incorporation Purpose

Merah X Satu Limited Malaysia Purchase of 2 Airbus A330-300 aircraft
Merah X Dua Limited Malaysia Purchase of 3 Airbus A330-300 aircraft
Merah X Tiga Limited Malaysia Purchase of 2 Airbus A330-343 aircraft
Merah X Empat Limited Malaysia ' Purchase of 1 Airbus A330-300 aircraft
Merah X Lima Limited Malaysia Purchase of 1 Airbus A330-300 aircraft
Merah X Enam Limited Malaysia Purchase of 2 Airbus A330-300 aircraft

The Merah X entities do not incur any losses or income during the financial year ended 31
December 2013. The aircraft and the corresponding term loans and finance costs have been
recognised by the Company upon the purchase of the aircraft.

The Group and the Company do not provide any financial support to these SPCs. The Group and
the Company do not have any contractual obligation to make good the losses, if any.
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EVENTS SUBSEQUENT TO THE FINANCIAL YEAR END

()

(b}

On & January 2014, the Company procured the issuance of a standby lstter of credit
(“SBLC") for up to USD4.0 million (approximately RM13.2 million) to provide maintenance
reserves deposit as required under the finance lease for its acquisition of a new Airbus
A330-300 aircraft in January 2014. This SBLC is secured by a first fixed charge over the
credit balance of its account in London maintained with the SBLC provider, where an
amount equal to 50% of the SBLC amount has been deposited.

On 7 January 2014, the Company obtained a term loan amounting to USD 72.5 million
{approximately 237.7 million) to finance the acquisition of an Airbus A330-300 aircraft
which was delivered on 9 January 2014. The repayment of this term'loan is on a guarterly
basis over 10 years, with equal principal instalments, at an annual interest rate of London
Interbank Offered Rate (LIBOR) + 0.23210%. In connection with the USD72.5 million.
financing, the Company had, on 2 January 2014, entered into an interest swap with a
financial institution in respect of the interest repayment of this loan (“SWAP Facility”).
Under the Swap facility, the Company converted the USD interest of 3-month LIBOR plus
0.24210% to a RM fixed rate loan with interest at 2,36% per annum for the entire tenor of
the loan.

On 23 January 2014, the Company. entered into a Shareholders’ Agreement with PT
Kirana Anugerah Perkasa (“PTKAP”) for the purpose of establishing a fong-haul low cost
ailine in Indonesia which will operate through an Indonesian incorporated entity, PT.
Indonesia Airasia Extra (“IAAX").

IAAX was incorporated on 22 May 2013 as a limited liability company under the laws of
Republic of Indonesia with authorised capital of Rp680,484,540 divided into 69,686,036
shares of Rp9,765 each, and issued and paid-up capital of Rp292,950,000,000 divided
into 30,000,000 shares of Rp9,765 each, with PTKAP holding fifty one percent {51%) and
AAX holding forty nine percentum (49%)
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SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION DISCLOSED PURSUANT TO BURSA MALAYSIA
SECURITIES LISTING REQUIREMENT

The following analysis of realised and unrealised retained profits is prepared in accordance with
the Guidance on Special Matter No.1 — Determination of Realised and Unrealised Profits or
Losses in the Context of Disclosure Pursuant to Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad Listing
Requirements, as issued by the Malaysian Institute of Accountants. This disclosure is based on
the format prescribed by Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad.

Group ___Company
2013 2012 2013 2012
RM000 RM'000 RM’000 RM'000
Total retained earnings of AirAsia X Berhad
and its subsidiaries:
- Realised (108,897) 59,811 (110,711) 96,797
- Unrealised 119,429 38,486 119,429 -
10,532 08,297 8,718 96,797
Total share of accumulated losses
from associated companies:
- Realised (502) - - -
Total retained earnings as per 10,030 98,297 8,718 96,797

consolidated financial statements

The disclosure of reafised and unrealised profits above is solely for compliance with the directive
issued by the Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad and should not be applied for any other purposes.
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STATEMENT BY DIRECTORS PURSUANT TO
SECTION 169(15) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 1965

We, Tan Sri Rafidah Aziz and Dato’ Yusli Bin Mohamed Yusoff, being two of the Directors of AirAsia X

- Berhad, state that, in the opinion of the Directors, the financial statements set out on pages 7 to 91 are
drawn up so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group and Company as at 31
December 2013 and of the results and the cash flows of the Group and Company for the financial year
ended on that date in accordance with the Malaysian Financial Reporting Standards, International
Financial Reporting Standards and the provisions of the Companies Act, 1965.

The information set out in Note 34 to the financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the
Guidance on Special Matter No. 1, Determination of Realised and Unrealised Profits or Losses in the
Context of Disclosure Pursuant to Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad Listing Requirements, as issued by
the Malaysian Institute of Accountants, ‘

In accordance with a resolution of the Board of Directors dated Z B APR Zm’*

S U

DATO’ YUSLI BIN MOHAMED YUSOFF
DIRECTOR

STATUTORY DECLARATION PURSUANT TO
SECTION 169(16) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 1965

l, Azran Osman Rani, the officer primarily responsible for the financial management of AirAsia X
Berhad, do solemnly and sincerely declare that the financial statements set out on pages 7 to 91 are,
in my opinion, correct and | make this solemn declaration conscientiously believing the same to be
true, and by virtue of the provisions of the Statutory Declarations Act, 1960.

AZRAN OSMAN RANI

Subscribed and solemnly declared by the abovenamed Azran sm.an\ﬁani at Kuala Lumpur in

Malaysiaon 2 § APR 7014 .before mo. JONER p
- s

ey,

o3 Lot 350, g Hoor, Wisma MPL,
Jan Raja Chlan,

S Dy Lo,



pwe

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

TO THE MEMBERS OF ATRASIA X BERHAD
(Incorporated in Malaysia)

{Company No. 734161 K)

REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

We have audited the financial statements of AirAsia X Berhad on pages 7 to 91 which comprise the
balance sheets as at 31 December 2013 of the Group and of the Company, 'and the statements of
income, comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows of the Group and of the Company for
the financial year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
notes, as set out in Notes 1 to 33.

Directors’ Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The Directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of financial statements so as to give
a true and fair view in accordance with Malaysian Financial Reporting Standards, International
Financial Reporting Standards and the requirements of the Companies Act, 1965 in Malaysia, The
Directors are also responsible for such internal control as the directors determine are necessary to
enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsihility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with approved standards on auditing in Malaysia. Those standards
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement,

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures
in the financial statements. The.procedures selected depend on our judgment, including the
assessmert of risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due 1o frand or
error. In making those risk assessments, we consider internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation of financial statements that give a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estiniates made by the Directors, as
well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a ba51s for
our audit opinion.

PricewaterhouseCoopers (AF 1146}, Chartered Accountants,
Level 10, 1 Sentral, Jalan Travers, Kuala Lumpur Sentral, P.0. Box 10192, 50706 Kuala Lumpur, Malaysia
T: +60 (3) 2173 1188, F: +60 (3) 2173 1288, www.pwe.com/my
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
TO THE MEMBERS OF AIRASTA X BERHAD (CONTINUED)

(Incorporated in Malaysia)
{Company No. 734161 K)

REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
Opinion .

In our opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Group
and of the Company as of 31 December 2013 and of their financial performance and cash flows for the
financial year then ended in accordance with Malaysian Financial Reporting Standards, International
Financial Reporting Standards and the Companies Act, 1965.

REPORT ON OTHER LEGAL AND REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS

In accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act, 1965 in Malaysia, we also report the
following: ' '

(a) In our opinion, the accounting and other records and the registers required by the Act to be
kept by the Company and its subsidiaries of which we have acted as auditors have been
" properly kept in accordance with the provisions of the Act.

() ‘We have considered the financial statements and the auditors’ reports of all the subsidiaries of
which we have not acted as auditors, which are indicated in Note 15 to the financial
statements. '

{c) We are satisfied that the financial statements of the subsidiaries that have been consolidated
with the Company’s financial statements are in form and content appropriate and proper for
the purposes of the preparation of the financial statements of the Group and we have received
satisfactory information and explanations required by us for those purposes. -

(d) The audit reports on the financial statements of the subsidiaries did not contain any
qualification or any adverse comment made under Section 174(3) of the Act.

OTHER REPORTING RESPONSIBILITIES

The supplementary information set out in Note 34 on page 92 is disclosed to meet the requirement of
Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad and is not part of the financial statements. The Directors are
responsible for the preparation of the supplementary information in accordance with Guidance on
Special Matter No. 1, Determination of Realised and Unrealised Profits or Losses in the Context of
‘Disclosure Pursuant to Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad Listing Requirements, as issued by the
Malaysia Institute of Accountants (“MIA Guidance”) and the directive of Bursa Malaysia Securities
Berhad. In our opinion, the supplementary information is prepared, in all material respects, in
accordance with the MIA Guidance and the directive of Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
TO THE MEMBERS OF AIRASIA X BERHAD (CONTINUED)

(Incorporated in Malaysia)
(Company No. 734161 X)

OTHER MATTERS
This report is made solely to the members of the Company, as a bedy, in accordance with Section 174

of the Companies Act, 1965 in Malaysia and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility to
any other person for the content of this report.

PRICEWATERHOUSELOOPERS IRVIN GEQRGE LUIS MENEZES
(No. AF: 1146) ’ (No. 2932J9b/14 (J)
Chartered Accountants Charteredfcountant

Kuala Lumpur
28 April zo14
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